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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE "GEM") OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision fo invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited fo
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities fraded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities tfraded on GEM.
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Non-executive Directors

CHANG Eric Jackson (appointed on 5 May 2017)
MENG Hu (resigned on 19 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directfors

FONG Fuk Wai

FUNG Kam Man (appointed on 1 August 2016)

CHAN Ngai Fan (appointed on 10 August 2017)

LIN Xiaofeng (resigned on 1 August 2016)
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ZHOU Jing (appointed on 13 September 2016
and resigned on 10 August 2017)

COMPANY SECRETARY

LEE Kin Fai

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

HUNG Kenneth

AUDIT COMMITTEE

FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman)
FUNG Kam Man
CHAN Ngai Fan
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CHAN Ngai Fan (Chairman)
FONG Fuk Wai
FUNG Kam Man

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

CHAN Ngai Fan (Chairman)
FONG Fuk Wai

HUNG Kenneth
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The Law Firm of Hugh H. Mo, P.C
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- STOCK CODE
& 8086

3y HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Office J, 21/F Kings Wing Plaza 1
"I" No. 3, On Kwan Street, Shatin, New Territories
Hong Kong

DX

+ AUDITORS

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.dxholdings.com

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal share registrar

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Branch share registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
< 183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

~~. PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch
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Citibank N.A.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the "Board”) of directors (the "Directors”)
of DX.com Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, referred to as the "Group”), | would like to present
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017
(the “Year") together with the Group's strategy and prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$50,990,000 for
the Year (2016: Loss of HK$112,915,000).

The Group’s consolidated loss attributable to the owners
of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$50,892,000 (2016: Loss of HK$112,832,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW
E-commerce

The Group engaged in the businesses of e-commerce mainly
through its B2C foreign frade e-commerce on-line sales platform,
namely DX.com. The e-commerce business of the Group has
been adversely affected by the intensifying competition in the
e-commerce industry and the global economy instability in
recent years. It recorded a continuous decrease in revenue,
from HK$399,736,000 for the previous year to HK$316,294,000
for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 20.87%.
Gross profit margin dropped from approximately 36.70% to
approximately 34.18%.

The Group managed to maintain the competitiveness of the
business. During the Year, the Group expanded info the sales
of luxuries, such as watches and wine, through another B2C
e-commerce on-line sales platform. Given the unsatisfactory
results, the Group closed down such on-line sales platform by
the end of the Year in avoidance of any further loss. In addition,
to cope with the adverse business environment, the Group
had been adopting fiscal austerity policies fo control its cost
and closed down and disposed certain under-performing B2C
e-commerce on-line sales platforms during the Year. Furthermore,
the Group will confinue to extend to trading of products other
than gadgets and living style products, and develop more
procurement channels. Also, the Group will further develop its
back-end system and shopping process optimization as well as
its apps on mobile devices. To provide value-added services to
the customers, the Group plans to work with local partners to
provide custom and pre-paid clearance service mainly in Latin
America such as Argentina, Brazil and Columbia.
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The e-commerce business of the Group is carried on through
its wholly-owned subsidiary EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited
("EPRO") and its subsidiaries. As the e-commerce business of
the Group has not been performing well in the past few years,
the Group entfered info a subscription agreement with Mr. Che
Xiaofei ("Mr. Che"), a former senior management of EPRO, on
31 March 2017, pursuant fo which EPRO has allotted and issued
new Shares to Mr. Che at a total consideration of HK$20,000,000.
The transaction was completed on 1 August 2017 and the
Group'’s equity interest in EPRO was reduced from 100% to 51%.
By infroducing Mr. Che as a new investor of EPRO, the Group has
received additional fund at a relatively low cost, and expected to
reduce its funding commitment to the EPRO Group in the future.
In addition, the valuable experience of Mr. Che in e-commerce
business management could contribute to the Group's
e-commerce business development.

Money-lending

The Group commenced the business of money-lending in Hong
Kong through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary acquired
during the Year. For the period from 7 October 2016 to 30 June
2017, the revenue of money-lending business amounted to
HK$2,973,000 and during the Year, the Group offered loans to
clients at an interest rate ranging from 8% to 12%. As at date of
this report, there is no event of default, hence no provision for
impairment is necessary during the Year.

Property management and property agency
services

The Group also commenced the business of property
management and property agency services through another
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary acquired during the Year. For
the period from 1 December 2016 to 30 June 2017, the revenue
of property management and property agency services was
HK$3,887,000. Benefited from the prosperous development of
property market in Hong Kong and leverage on the experienced
team and stable customer base, development of the segment
will remain sustainable.

Others

The Group secured the sole distribution right of a medicine
for treatment of urinary problems in the PRC during the Year.
As the business development was slower than expected, the
management ceased to develop such business affer the
reporting period. Except for a small sum of administrative
expenses incurred, there has been no material loss.
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PROSPECT

With a view to providing the shareholders with better returns, the
Group has progressively explored different business opportunities
outside of the field of e-commerce since the end of the previous
financial year fo diversify its business. Subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, the Company made access to the agency
business for licensed IP rights and international IP development
business through its acquisition of Sense Media Group Limited.
Through sub-licensing the IP rights and relevant products to
the ultimate customers, it can generate fixed and fee-sharing-
based income as well as ancillary income from advertising and
sponsorship, and product sales. The Board is of the view that
outlook of the agency business for licensed IP rights is promising
with huge potential for development, in particular, by leveraging
the development of internet technology as well as the favorable
environment created by wide acceptance of direct sales models
of e-commerce among consumers and upgrade of domestic
consuming industries. As the first step to diversify the Group'’s
business, the acquisitions performed during the Year will give
fresh impetus fo its development. Looking ahead, the Group will
further develop its businesses, follow the market dynamic and
actively identify potential investment opportunities. The Board is of
the view that business pluralism will pave the way for the Group’s
development. The Group will confinue fo proactively widen its
business scope to generate fruitful returns for the shareholders.
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extend our greatest gratfitude to the management team and all
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Review - Continuing Operations

During the Year, the Group has extended its business into
the operation of money-lending and provision of property
management and property agency services in Hong Kong.

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue from the continuing operations
of approximately HK$323,154,000 (2016: approximately
HK$399,736,000), representing a drop of approximately 19.16%.

During the Year, the revenue from the e-commerce business
attributed approximately 97.88% (2016: 100%) of the total
revenue of the Group.

The decrease in the revenue from e-commerce business was
mainly resulted from the weak growth in global economy
due to continued pressure from uncertainties in the external
environment as well as confinuous fluctuations in the financial
market and weaker consumer market. Also, intense industrial
competition adversely affected the Group’s sales performance.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit dropped from approximately HK$146,705,000 for
the previous year to approximately HK$106,785,000 for the Year,
representing a drop of approximately 27.21%, while the gross
profit margin also recorded decrease at approximately 33.04%
(2016: approximately 36.70%). The drop in the gross profit was
attributed fo the intfense competition within the e-commerce
industry.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The drop in the revenue of e-commerce business during the Year
led the drop in the respective expenses.

Administrative Expenses

The drop in the expenses was mainly caused by the followings:
An impairment loss for the available-for-sales investment
of approximately HK$88,000 was recorded (2016:
HK$27,570,000); and

Lesser general administrative expenses were incurred by
adoption of fiscal austerity policies.
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Finance Costs

The finance costs during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$349,000 (2016: HK$7,084,000). The finance costs decreased
because there was no note payable during the Year.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a loss from continuing operations of
approximately HK$50,990,000 for the Year and representing a
decrease of approximately 55.63% as compared with that of
last year of approximately HK$114,921,000. During the Year, the
Group recorded a comprehensive loss aftributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$50,892,000
(2016: loss of HK$112,832,000).

Even though the Group's revenue and gross profit in e-commerce
business kept dropping during the Year, its loss was partially
offset by:

the profit attributed to the newly acquired money-lending
business, and property management and property agency

business;

decrease in administration expenses caused by fight cost
control;

decrease in impairment loss of the available-for-sales
investment; and

decrease in the finance costs.
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; Financial Key Performance Indicators MEBRRRER
rS The Board monitored a number of financial key performance EX@ERZIANKHEHERIRIEZ([RERIRIEZ])
+ = indicators (*KPI"s) to measure the Group’s performance over  MstEREEE —BRFMANKE - BRBHEHKIRE
+ time. The KPIs may be subjected to refinement in accordance  1ZsZBREEGTEZ MM - NEERIRESIANS
with the needs of business. Details of the Group’s performance  F#RIBISITH L RBAFBFHIIWT ¢
DX against each of the finance related KPIs are set out below:
"I" KPI measures Definition/Calculation Comments
BERBEETE %/ HE 4]
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Retfurn on investments
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- Gearing ratio
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+
Current ratio
- < et &
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Basic earnings per shares
BRERZH

A basic earning per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable

to ordinary equity holders of the
Company and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year
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It divides net loss by net assets
FERFEEL X

A ratio of net debt (liabilities less
pledged deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) over fotal capital

plus net debt

EHFHE(RBREERFR RS R
SEERR)FARER LERFE

A ratio of current assefs over current

liabilities
RPEESRPEBAOLE

The portion of a company’s
profit/ (loss) allocated to each
outstanding share of common
stock

BREBRATGENFE, (B8)

o

A profitability measures that
evaluates the performance of a
business by dividing net profit by
net worth
BRFNBRARESE—ELE
HEFIES

Degree of leverage
EREE

It measures a company’s ability
fo pay short-term obligations
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Capital Structure

The Group mainly finances its operations with internal resources,
proceeds from fund raising (please refer to the “Fund Raising
Activities” section) and banking and other facilities provided by
banks and other financial institution. The Group continued to
exert stringent control over treasury policies.

During the Year, the interest rate of banking and other facilities
were charged at the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (HIBOR)
plus 2% per annum and 11% per annum respectively (2016:
HIBOR plus 2% per annum and 10% per annum respectively).

As at 30 June 2017, the amount of bank borrowing of the
Group which were repayable within one year was nil (2016:
HK$10,000,000), and there was no other borrowing of the Group
which will be repayable more than one year (2016: Nil).

Save as the above, the capital structure of the Group had no
material changes.
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Fund Raising Activities
Placing under General Mandate in July 2016

On 7 July 2016, the Company entered info a placing agreement
under general mandate with a placing agent, pursuant to which
the Company has placed a total of 295,832,000 new shares
at the placing price of HK$0.11 per share to not less than six
placees who and whose respective ultimate beneficial owners
are independent third parties (the “July 2016 GM Placing”). The
placing price of HK$0.11 per placing share represents:

() adiscount of approximately 15.38% to the closing price of
HK$0.13 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 7
July 2016, the date of the placing agreement; and

(i) adiscount of approximately 15.77% to the average closing
price of HK$0.1306 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive frading days immediately
prior fo the date of the placing agreement.

The placing price was determined affer arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and the placing agent with reference
to the market prices of the shares at that fime. The Directors
considered that the placing price was fair and reasonable based
on the market conditions at the moment and in the interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The July 2016 GM Placing was completed on 26 July 2016 with
net proceeds of approximately HK$31,215,000 and used for
general working capital, business development and investment
opportunities of the Group. Details of the July 2016 GM Placing
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 7
July 2016 and 26 July 2016, respectively.

The net proceeds from the July 2016 GM Placing was fully utilized
as intended as follows:

(i)  approximately HK$20,000,000 has been utilised for funding
the operating costs in relation fo the e-commerce business
of the Group;

(i)  approximately HK$715,000 has been utilised for funding the
operating costs of the Company; and

(iiy  approximately HK$10,500,000 has been utilised for funding

part of the consideration of the acquisition of money-
lending business of the Group.
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Placing under Specific Mandafe

On 17 October 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement under specific mandate with a placing agent,
pursuant fo which the Company has placed a total of 468,750,000
new shares at the placing price of HK$0.128 per share to not less
than six placees who and whose respective ultimate beneficial
owners are independent third parties (the "SM Placing”). The
placing price of HK$0.128 per placing share represents:

() a discount of approximately 5.88% to the closing price of
HK$0.136 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
17 October 2016, the date of the placing agreement; and

(i) a discount of approximately 1.39% to the average closing
price of HK$0.1298 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive frading days immediately
prior to the date of the placing agreement.

The placing price was determined affer arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and the placing agent with reference
to the market prices of the shares at that time. The Directors
considered that the placing price was fair and reasonable based
on the market conditions at the moment and in the interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The SM Placing was completed on 8 December 2016 with net
proceeds of about HK$57,455,000 and used for developing the
money-lending business, general working capital of the Group
and funding the payment of the remaining consideration of the
acquisition of money-lending business. Details of the SM Placing
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 17
October 2016 and 8 December 2016, respectively.

The net proceeds from the SM Placing was fully utilised as
intended as follows:

()  approximately HK$29,500,000 has been utilised for funding
the payment of the remaining consideration of the
acquisition of money-lending business;

(i)  approximately HK$25,000,000 has been utilised for granting
of loans for money-lending business;

(iiy  approximately HK$455,000 has been utilised for personnel
and related expenses for development of the money-
lending business; and
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(iv) approximately HK$2,500,000 has been utilised for funding
the operating cost of the Group including but not limited fo
salaries, rental expenses and office expenses.

Placing under General Mandafte in April 2017

On 6 April 2017, the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing agreement under general mandate, pursuant to
which, the Company placed a total of 355,000,000 new shares
at the placing price of HK$0.122 per share to not less than six
placees who and whose respective ultimate beneficial owners
are independent third parties (the "April 2017 GM Placing”). The
placing price of HK$0.122 per placing share represents:

(i) adiscount of approximately 16.44% to the closing price of
HK$0.146 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 6
April 2017, the date of the placing agreement; and

(i) adiscount of approximately 14.08% to the average closing
price of HK$0.142 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive frading days immediately
prior to the date of the placing agreement.

The placing price was determined affer arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and the placing agent with reference
to the market prices at that time of the shares. The Directors
considered that the placing price is fair and reasonable based
on the market conditions at the moment and in the inferests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The April 2017 GM Placing was completed on 27 April 2017. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$41,426,000 would be used for
general working capital, business development and investment
opportunities of the Group. Details of the April 2017 GM Placing
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6
April 2017 and 27 April 2017, respectively.

The actual use of the net proceeds from the April 2017 GM
Placing as at 30 June 2017 was as follows:

()  approximately HK$5,457,000 has been utilized for funding
the deposit and related expenses for acquisition of Sense

Media Group Limited;

(i) approximately HK$7,780,000 has been utilized for the
working capital of the money-lending business; and
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approximately HK$4,459,000 has been utilized for working
capital of the Group including but not limited to salaries,
rental expenses and deposits, legal and professional fee
and office expenses.

It was expected that the remaining proceeds of about
HK$23,730,000 would be utilized as intended.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investments

@

(i)

Acquisitions

During the Year, the Company has acquired subsidiaries
engaging in money-lending business and provision of
property management and property agency services. For
details, please refer to the "Business Review” section and
note 32 to consolidated financial statement.

Deemed Disposal

On 31 March 2017, EPRO entered into a subscription
agreement (the "Subscription Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to
which EPRO has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 245 new EPRO shares at a total consideration of
HK$20,000,000 (the “EPRO Shares Subscription”). The EPRO
Share Subscription was completed on 1 August 2017. Upon
completion, the Subscriber held 49% of the total number of
EPRO Shares and the Company’s effective interest in EPRO
was diluted from 100% to 51%. Such dilution was treated
as a deemed disposal by the Company in interest in a
subsidiary under Rule 19.29 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the EPRO Shares Subscription were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 31 March 2017 and the
Company'’s circular dated 16 June 2017.

(iif)
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(iii) Significant Investment

The Directors consider that investments with a market
value that account for more than 5% of the Group’s
total assets as at the end of the reporting period as
significant investments. The details of the available-for-sales
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(i) EARE
BEERR TEHEAEERBRERRZEE
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—tFERA=ZTERZE—RFRA=THK
HBRAEEAEE 2SR A 1R E 27

investments, each of which accounted for more than 5% BEEHIIAT
of the Group’s total assets as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June
2016 are set out below:
Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage
of fotal to of fofal fo
issued share the Group's issued share the Group's
capital of oudited capital of audited
the investee fofal assets the investee fofal ossefs
company as ot company asaf
Number of as of 30 June Number of asat 30June
shares held 30June  Market value 217 shares held 30June  Market value 2016
asat 2017 asat s asat 216 asat ]
NJune  HRRELT MJune  RZF-tE Ndune  EREERR Ndne  RAFE
017 R-F-tf 217 AB=tH N6 RFF 216 ~NA=tH
R%-tE AAZTR RoE-tE B8R RNIERE VY = D e S B
Description of invesfment R BEfRA AB=TH EEy ~NR=tH BE{IRA NA=TH ahEy
REf FisROEE  BEZEMM i BA  FRRGEE ANt L Aatt
HKS'000 HKS'000
T Th
China Parenfing Network Holdings
Limited ("CPN")
HERRERRERA
([hEIE A ]) 15,000,000 1.46% 29,700 9.10% 15,000,000 146% 33,000 14.06%
AMCO United Holding Limited (‘AMCO")
EXARARAR(EXMR) - = = - 22,000,000 1.18% 12540 5.34%
o ki = - 10611 4.52%
st 29,700 5,151
Notes: BffeE -

0) No dividend income was received during the year.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

() AFEALBEKIIRE



DX

Performance of the Group’s significant investments
for the Year and its future prospects

CPN

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company acquired
15,000,000 shares of CPN at investment cost of approximately
HK$30,095,000.

CPN (the shares of which are listed on GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8361)) was principally engaged in (i)
the provision of marketing and promotional services through its
platform, including Cl Web, mobile ClI Web, Mobile Application
Software (*APPs”) and IPTV APPs; (ii) e-commerce business in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"); and (iii) licensing
of smart-hardware devices through ifs large and engaged user
base of CBM customers.

As disclosed in the interim report of CPN for the six months
ended 30 June 2017, CPN recorded a net profit of approximately
RMB20,873,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2017 as
compared with that of approximately RMB19,169,000 for the
corresponding period in 2016 with an increase of approximately
8.8% and it will continue to provide users with diversified services
and be committed to upgrade in the mother-child industry based
on smart family lifestyle.

CPN submitted a formal application fo the Stock Exchange on
30 March 2017 for the transfer of listing of shares from GEM fo the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (*Main Board”) pursuant to
Chapter 9A of the Listing Rules. The Company expected that the
Main Board will enhance the trading liquidity of CPN Share and
will ultimately contribute to increasing shareholder value.

Review of Operations
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AMCO

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company acquired
22,000,000 shares at investment cost of approximately
HK$7,504,000.

AMCO (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board (Stock
Code: 630)), is principally engaged in (i) manufacture and sale
of medical device products; (i) manufacture and sale of plastic
moulding products; (iii) provision of public relations services; and
(iv) provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works; (v) provision of
money-lending; and (vi) investment in securities.

As disclosed in the annual report of AMCO for the year
ended 31 December 2016, AMCO continued to record a loss
from continuing operation of approximately HK$18,030,000,
as compared with the loss from continuing operation of
approximately HK$17,102,000 for the corresponding period in
2015 with an increase of approximately 5.4%.

During the Year, the Group disposed of all AMCO shares on the
Stock Exchange.

General

The Group will confinuously and closely monitor the performance
of the investment.

The Group recognised a net loss on disposal of available-for-
sales investments of approximately HK$384,000 (2016: loss of
approximately HK$2,029,000) for the Year, which consists of (i)
release of gain from available-for-sales investment reserve of
approximately HK$5,608,000 (2016: HKS Nil) fo the consolidated
statement of profit or loss upon disposal and (ii) a fair value loss
recognised upon disposal of approximately HK$5,992,000 (2016:
HK$ Nil).

As at 30 June 2017, the available-for-sales investment recorded
a fair value loss of approximately HK$3,300,000 (2016: gain of
approximately HK$2,905,000) and included in the available-for-
sales investment reserve.

Save for the above, the Company had no other significant

investments and material acquisitions or disposals during the
Year.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by internally
generated cash flow, proceeds from issue of shares and facilities
provided by banks and other financial institution.

As at 30 June 2017, the consolidated shareholders’ equity,
current assets and net current assets of the Group were
approximately HK$241,107,000 (2016: HK$132,019,000),
HK$254,252,000 (2016: HK$171,767,000) and HK$169,115,000,
(2016: HK$68,969,000), respectively.

In respect of the Group’s total current assets of HK$254,252,000
as at 30 June 2017 (2016: HK$171,767,000), trade receivable (net
of provision for doubtful debts) accounted for approximately
1.65% (2016: 0.38%) whilst pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents accounted for approximately 37.27% (2016: 29.25%).
As at 30 June 2017, the Group'’s pledged deposits amounted to
approximately HK$310,000 (2016: HK$20,218,000) and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$94,458,000
(2016: HK$30,017,000).

As at 30 June 2017, there was no bank borrowings repayable
within one year (2016: HK$10,000,000). There has no other
borrowings repayable more than one year (2016: Nil).

The Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
and bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
pound Sterling, Euro, Renminbi, Canadian dollars, Swiss Franc,
Australian dollars, Japanese Yen, Mexican Peso and United
States dollars.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had a revolving loan facility with
other financial institution of HK$30,000,000 (2016: facilities from
bank and other financial institution of HK$35,300,000), and
nothing was utilised (2016: HK$10,000,000).

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had no external borrowing, the
gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio of net debt divided by the
total capital plus net debt was not applicable (2016: 28.48%).
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi, Euro and United States dollars.

In accordance with the Group’s conservative treasury policy, the
Group had not entered forward contract for hedging during the
Year. The Group will keep on monitoring the foreign currency risk
and consider any tool for hedging if necessary.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group has no outstanding foreign
exchange contracts (2016: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

Except for the disclosures in notes 35 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2017.

Charges on Assets

As at 30 June 2017, the banking and other facilities of the Group
are secured by:

(i) corporate unlimited guarantees executed by the
Company; and

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting tfo approximately HK$310,000 (2016:
HK$20,218,000).

Included in the prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
HK$78,100,000 were the balances of US$5,020,000 (equivalents
fo approximately HK$39,156,000) (the “Frozen Accounts”) (2016:
US$5,020,000 equivalent to approximately HK$39,156,000), which
were frozen by Silicon Valley Bank and the PayPal. The Frozen
Accounts were temporarily restrained from use as the Group was
involved in a litigation, detail of which is stated in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2017, the number of staff of the Group was
138 (2016: 205). Staff remuneration is reviewed once a year,
or as the management considers appropriate. Changes in
remuneration are based on a range of factors including the
Group’s performance, the competitiveness of remuneration with
the external market, and individual employee’s performance
during the Year. Employees were paid at fixed remuneration
with discretionary bonus and benefits of medical insurance,
mandatory provident fund, share options and necessary training.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and of the senior
management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. POON Man Sum, aged 57, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Poon obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Mathematics from the University of Alberta in 1984. After
his graduation, Mr. Poon has worked in various information
technology companies. From September 2010 until May 2017,
Mr. Poon has worked at Oracle (China) Software Systems Co., Ltd
("Oracle”) and his last position in Oracle is a senior director, VAD
Channels Sales. Mr. Poon joined the Group on 18 May 2017.

Mr. HUNG Kenneth, aged 46, is an executive Director and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Hung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 15 January 2015 was re-designated to executive Director on
7 October 2015. Mr. Hung holds a Degree of Bachelor of Science
awarded by Woodbury University in June 1995. He has extensive
experience in the entertainment industry. From July 2012 to
October 2013, Mr. Hung was the business development director
for Star Alliance Movies (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Mr. Hung is an executive
director of Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited (Stock Code: 8081) and independent non-
executive directors of China Demeter Financial Investments
Limited (formerly known as China Demeter Investments Limited,
Stock Code: 8120) and IR Resources Limited (Stock Code: 8186),
the shares of the above three companies are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Al Kuiyu, aged 34, is an executive Director. Mr. Ai obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Spanish from the Communication University
of China in 2005 and a Master of Arts Degree in journalism
from the Renmin University of China in 2014. He obtained the
qualifications of class 2 broadcaster and journalist from the
Radio, Film and Television Talents Exchange Cenfre under
the State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and
Television of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). Mr. Ai
has extensive experience in international communication and
journalism. From 2005 to 2016, he had worked as an anchor,
moderator, producer and news reporter in the PRC. Mr. Ai joined
the Group on 27 March 2017.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson, aged 37, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Chang received his Bachelor of Commerce Degree from
the University of British Columbia in May 2002. Mr. Chang
worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. from September
2002 to September 2013 and his last position there was senior
manager. During October 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Chang was the
chief financial officer of a property development company. Mr.
Chang is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also a registered member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chang joined the
Group on 5 May 2017.

Mr. Chang currently is the company secretary and the chief
financial officer of China Tangshang Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Culture Landmark Investment Limited, Stock Code:
674), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Moreover, during the period from
July 2015 to March 2017, Mr. Chang has served various roles
in ZH International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 185), a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Such roles included an executive director, the
joint company secretary and the chief financial officer of ZH
Infernational Holdings Limited.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

A

Kk - DX

= AAAAS

(0]

FHTES

SRIDESL - BET5R 0 BFATES - REER
—RE_FRARRBIRLTABRERBELE
i  RZBZE-FNREZT—=FNA K&
ERNERBCKERFTEIESAT - BERAIEERRE
B-R-Z—=F+AZ_T-HFLAHME KL
ER-REHERBERARNZUBRLE - RELERE
RBEMAEEE  ARTAXEEFMASENS
8o REENR-ZB—LFRAARRMAREHE -

SRR R BEEEERER AR (A1 AR
REABRAT - RIS : 674 - EROIOEEZAE
REMZ AR Z ARWEFRIISEE < 1o R
Z-AFLAE_T—tF= AR - REELGRIE
EEEZERAR AR (BRMHRSE - 185 » EB 75
RFER L) EEZ R - 2P BEEERRE
BRAERDARZHTES BEARWE RIS -



- o~ o

Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. On 10 August 2017, Mr. Fong
was re-designated from the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee to a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Fong had obtfained a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong has gained more than
30 years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance area
and serviced the private and listed public companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Fong joined the Group on 28 October 2006.

Dr. FUNG Kam Man, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Dr. Fung has obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, the
degree of Master of Science in Financial Management from the
University of London and the Doctor of Philosophy Degree from
the University of Nottingham. Dr. Fung has been certified as a
Project Management Professional by the Project Management
Institute. He is a certified financial planner certified by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and the Chinese
Institute of Certified Financial Planners. Dr. Fung has over 20
years of experience in the continuing education and vocational
fraining field. He is now the quality assurance and accreditation
consultant of Stage at Bridal Limited and an independent non-
executive director of First Credit Finance Group Limited (stock
code: 8215), the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. Dr. Fung joined the Group on 1 August 2016.
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Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan, aged 37, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Arts
in Accountancy and a Master Degree of Corporate Governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007
and October 2013 respectively. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since February 2011
and is registered as a certified public accountant (Practising)
since January 2015. Mr. Chan has over 14 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and financial management. Mr. Chan
is a non-executive Director of Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High
Technology Corporation Limited, a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8301); and Mr. Chan is also
the financial controller of KPa-BM Holdings Limited, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8141). Mr.
Chan joined the Group on 10 August 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Kin Fai, aged 44, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the Manchester Business
School of University of Manchester, United Kingdom. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
Group was principally engaged in e-commence and provision
of on-line sales platform. During the year ended 30 June 2017,
the Group extended its business into the operation of (i) money-
lending business; and (ii) provision of property management and
property agency services in Hong Kong through the acquisition
of certain subsidiaries.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 30 June
2017, an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators are set out in the below paragraphs headed "Risks
and Uncertainties”,"Chairman’s Statement” and "Review of
Operations” of this annual report and notes 38 and 41 fo the
consolidated financial statements. The review forms part of this
directors’ report.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are the keys fo the sustainable development fo the Group. The
Group is committed o build a close and caring relationship with
its employees and suppliers, and improves the quality of services
and products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, fraining,
occupational health and safety.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers
and has ongoing communication with its customers and
suppliers through various channels such as telephone, electronic
mails and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and
suggestions.
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Repor’r of the Directors
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2017 and the
Group's financial position at that date are sef out in the
consolidated financial statements from pages 62 to 187.

The Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 188.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 29 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has identified principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces with respect to economic risks, operational
risks, regulatory risks, credit risks and financial risks. The
Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be materially and adversely affected by those risks and
uncertainties. The following highlights the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group and it is not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks and uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but turn out to
be material in the future.

Economic risks

- A severe or prolonged downturn of the global economy.
- Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, inflation

and fluctuations of inferest rates would adversely affect the
customers’ spending sentiment.
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Operational risks

- Failure to compete in the competitive environment which
the Group operates in.

- Unable to keep pace with the technological advances in a
fimely and cost-efficient manner.

- Unexpected network interruptions or undetected
programming errors or defects.

- Any technical interruption or inadequacy to the system
of the payment gateways may cause delay in receipt of
customers’ payment.

Regulatory risks

- Infringement of valid patents, copyrights or other
infellectual property rights held by third parties may lead to
significant penalties.

- Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain
or maintain all applicable permits and approvals.

= Any change in laws and regulations in different customers’
countries may affect its business.

Credit risks

- The borrowers cannot repay or delay in repayment of
loan which may have a significant impact to the financial
position to the Group.

Financial risks

- Details of financial risks are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company’s distributable
reserves are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 8% (2016: approximately
8%) of the total sales for the Year and the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 5% (2016:
approximately 5%).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 86% (2016: approximately 89%) of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 26% (2016:
approximately 28%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial inferest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. POON Man Sum

(appointed on 18 May 2017)
Mr. Al Kuiyu

(appointed on 27 March 2017)
Mr. HUANG Shaokang

(resigned on 23 September 2016)
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong

(resigned on 23 September 2016)
Mr. HUNG Kenneth
Mr. TAI Man Hin Tony

(appointed on 13 September 2016 and

resigned on 1 June 2017)

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

DX

DX

ooo

AT R i
R=B—tFAASTEILER - ARFZTHHE
FERNG & BB RANI 543 -

FEEFRUMER

RERFE - AEBEERARPEATEEHED
BEH(—F—AE  H9B8%) - MABAES (B8
R LIES) 2 BRI ASH —E—AF : 0B
5%) °

MAKERERARERZBEREAFERER
K RBO%(—ZF—7RF : K)R89%) » MAHZAHIE
(B RN LR HER) 2 BERUN/26%(—F
—NEF  BR28%) °

BEEMA  BEARTDHETRASWA LZEE
PIRE Z (A RBEE A T SREAIICR - WENAE
Bz AERARPRHERhHEE N EaER

EE
FFERAEAFENRBEARE ANRENT :

BTES:

ERRE A
(R=F—tFRA+\BBEE)

NEFRE
(R=F—tF=A-+LABEM)

BOFSEE
(R=Z—AFAA=TZAEHE)

GRS S
(R=Z—AFAA=TZAEHE)

HEREE

B3O e
(R=Z—AFAA+ZBREER
R=Z—tFXA—BRHL)



Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MENG Hu
(resigned on 19 December 2016)
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson
(appointed on 5 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. LIN Xiacofeng
(resigned on 1 August 2016)
Mr. ZHU Zhi
(resigned on 23 September 2016)
Dr. FUNG Kam Man
(appointed on 1 August 2016)
Mr. ZHOU Jing
(appointed on 13 September 2016 and resigned on
10 August 2017)
Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan
(appointed on 10 August 2017)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Bye-laws, five of the existing
Directors, namely, Mr. POON Man Sum, Mr. HUNG Kenneth,
Mr. Al Kuiyu, Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson and Mr. CHAN Ngai
Fan, shall retire at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company. Except for Mr. HUNG Kenneth, who has indicated to
the Company that he will not offer himself for re-election and
will therefore retire at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company, all the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 24 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2017 annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year. The
Company has maintained appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are recommended by
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and deftermined by
the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the result of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as the related party fransactions disclosed in note 36 fo the
consolidated financial statements, no Director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group fo which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entfered into or existed during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Placing of New Shares

Details of the placing of new shares are set out in "Review of
Operations” of this annual report and note 29 fo the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 31 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as the above, the Company has no other equity-linked
agreements entered during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (THE "SFO")

A.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2017, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company do not have any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and ifs associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by Directors of the Company as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2017, the following parties had interests of 5%
or more in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
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R-ZB—tFXA=1+H ARARAEERTE
TRABALERARRREBEEE(EER
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E352{F1F B 2 B - RBAIZER TR
A5 A6 AR R ESETEE ZRTER
ARG AR A M2 P2 #Eas o

FERR

RIZE—LFRA=TH  UTALREES
KB EPIEI3OGREARBFE 2 E LM
PRECEMN AR AR P HEBE% A £ 2 s

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial Long position/ interested capital*
shareholder Capacity Short position BEERZ EERTRAR
TERRERE =4 R/ KA LERYE BatL*
Great Capital (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner Long 198,288,000 7.14%
EREEA HE (Note) (PifzE)
Swift Success Enterprises Limited  Interest of controlled corporation Long 198,288,000 7.14%
R HE (Note) (PftzE)
Mr. XIA Boyu Interest of controlled corporations Long 198,288,000 7.14%
BEFELE R R R HE (Note) ()
Beneficial owner Long 69,264,000 2.49%
EREEA e
Mr. LEUNG Kwok Pong Beneficial owner Long 431,560,000 15.54%
REREE EREEAA HE
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Note: These 198,288,000 shares of the Company were held by
Great Capital (H.K.) Limited, a corporation wholly confrolled
by Swift Success Enferprises Limited which was in turn wholly
controlled by Mr. XIA Boyu. Accordingly, Swift Success
Enterprises Limited and Mr. Xia were deemed to be interested
in 198,288,000 shares of the Company held by Great Capital
(H.K.) Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares
interested divided by the number of issued shares of the
Company as at 30 June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, so far as is
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
no person had registered an interest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouse
or children under 18 year or age, or were any rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable to the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporation.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the
public as af the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the
Company has an inferest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.
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HIZR A 7]198,288, 000/ Ak fn A #E  #E s ©

* Z B DL IEPTER s B B A R
NARRRZE—+tFRA=Z+THZERT
RIHEE °

B EXPRmBEEN R FE—tFRA=T
B BARRESHEBTHA B ML &
ERIALTEERARER S LB EDIE336
T AR 2 AN RIRX A SARRAAR (0 o 2 #E 2

kA o

ESWERERG 2 EF

RAFEEMRRERER TENESHFEEZE 2
BRARFR T N\FRZFLEBRBARFRMDHAES
LAMESRIzE 2 #E R - A ZFEMNBRETR A
RAEIKEAEAAME QR I ERT B - AHE
EAERIEAM A R B RESZSER -

RADMRIGIRE
REAARES 2 AHERRBEENA - RARE
A ARATHAARTDETREBT LR
25% °

ESNGERB 2=

ARRE R IR BR B ENEAT S AR E G ER
P HRABBAGR T 2 E T A -



ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed fo building an environmental-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. The Group strives to minimize the environmental
impact by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials.

Further details are disclosed in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the Company prepared in accordance
with Appendix 20 fo the GEM Listing Rules which will be published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, during the Year and up to the
date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its business and operations.

LITIGATION

Details of the litigation of the Group are set outf in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events after the end of the reporting period of
the Group are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

There has been no change of auditors in the past three years.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ascenda Cachet CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2017
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

POON Man Sum
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 September 2017
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The Directors present this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance in maintaining its corporate transparency and
accountability. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group'’s business.

The Board considers that for the period from 1 July 2016 to
the date of this annual report, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions sef out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, except for the code
provision A.2.1. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing
deviation are summarised below.

A.

Al.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the aftainment of the objective of creating
value fo shareholders, and on behalf of the shareholders,
overseeing the Company’s financial performance.
All Directors carry out their dutfies in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, take decisions objectively and acts in the
inferests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
intfernal control and risk management systems, material
fransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’'s expenses, upon
reasonable request made fo the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are led by the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management of the Company. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior fo any significant tfransactions entered info by the
foregoing officers and senior management.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

DX

DX

ooo

EEREHE T FNA=THIEFEZERE

A -

TEXEARER
ARTARRBUR I CEEARB AR LS 2 ERE
BREiE BB - EFRHTEEEE - WHTE
AREEARMEBRIEEHARY CREAE
7 o

EEERA/A_TRNFLA-BREARFHAHH
A - ARAEEARIZER ETARAMESR - AAEEE
EaTRI([ R 2EA TR ) PT# 2z [R A K8 <F 7 Bl
3 MESFRIMGSCEA 2 VIRERSN - ARBZ EERE
ERRRI K BRI RADR R S ERRnT

A EEE

Al. EERERHE
EXe8 R ARREB I BBERRER X
BEBIETHR « RN BREBRRR
BEZBE  RRERKERESARR U
RE - IEESHETZABRITRE - &
STHEAERNER - LREFBITE  IERE
BRFAEARA REBERE o

E=ZgRBRADAMAERERELIARRZ
N BEAERERABBCREE  BEX
BN TRE - RS R EREESE - EAR
ZFLERAIES MANETRZRS) - HEE
B EEEEREMERYBREEEE -

PrEEEIGR] 20 M AER AR ERHIA
RAmWERSRERE 2 ZE RS - AT
RETEESREREFAAEEAZAMRSE
fl - SBEE—RANEZERL TAEEGREH
SHEUERATERITHAARRNASZ

BEEN -

ARBZAFER  TRREEHARFZE
BHITERSEEREA SRS - HER 7Bt
R TEEB S E MR - fdSRAERDE
ERABFLEAEAR SRS ABRSGES
SHUE -



(0]

Corporate Governance Report

A2. Board Composition

As at 30 June 2017, the Board comprised the following
Directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. POON Man Sum

(Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Al Kuiyu

Mr. HUNG Kenneth

(Member of the Nomination Committee)

Non-executive director:
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai

Dr. FUNG Kam Man

Mr. ZHOU Jing

(Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Commiftee)
(Member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Commiftee)
(Member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Commiftee)

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2017 and up to
date of this annual report, the composition of the Board
has the following changes:

)

(i)

iiiy

Mr. ZHOU Jing has resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and ceased to be a member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company;

Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee and the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company;

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai has been re-designated from
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee to a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

For the period from 1 July 2016 to the date of this annual
report, the Board has met the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of having at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one third of the Board) with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.
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All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism fo the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
"Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related
to one another.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules.

. Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals.

During the Year, Mr. POON Man Sum, the Chairman of
the Board, had provided leadership for the Board and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive, in a fimely manner, adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at the Board meetings, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed in a fimely manner.

To achieve clear division of responsibilities between the
management of Board and the day-to-day management
of business and hence to ensure balance of power and
authority, there are separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (as stipulated
under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code). However,
after the resignation of Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 23 September 2016,
the Group has been looking for suitable candidate to fill for
the post of Chief Executive Officer.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific ferm and is subject to retirement by rotafion once
every three years. Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan
and Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson are appointed for a term
of 2 years whereas Dr. FUNG Kam Man is appointed for a
ferm from 1 August 2016 fo the date of the annual general
meeting of the Company in 2017.

According to clause 84(1) of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one third) shall refire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Besides, according to clause 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. The Company’s circular, sent together with
this annual report, contains detailed information of the
retiring directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Training and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and directors’
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors will be
arranged as necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company (i) has
organized briefings conducted by professional firm, Leung
and Lau, Solicitors, for its Directors namely, Mr. POON Man
Sum, Mr. Al Kuiyu, Mr. HUNG Kenneth, Mr. TAI Man Hin Tony,
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson. Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, Dr. FUNG Kam
Man and Mr. ZHOU Jing on update on the GEM Listing
Rules amendments; and (ii) has provided reading materials
on regulatory update to all the Directors for their reference
and studying.
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rS The attendance records of each Director at the Board and BEEFHREARARBEZ—tFRA=T
+ = Board committee meetings and the general meetings of HIEFERTZEEe SR NEFTEELTER
+ the Company held during the year ended 30 June 2017 KRR AREHHF R8s EH AT
are set out below:
DX
Attendance/Number of meetings
3 R EHHE
Annual Special
N Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
— + Name of Director Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
- EEnR - ENZEES FMzEES REZEE RRATAE BIRRAS
Executive directors:
T HITEE
Mr. POON Man Sum 11 = = = = =
AXREE
Mr. Al Kuiyu 5/5 - - - - -
, NEFRE
OO Mr. HUANG Shaokang 0/3 - - - = 0/1
DX BEORRE
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 3/3 - 1/ - - 0/1
= Bk E
Mr. HUNG Kenneth 20/21 - - 11 1/1 0/2
HEREE
- Mr. TAI Man Hin Tony 18/19 - - - 11 11
el B
= Non-execultive directors:
- FHTEE
Mr. MENG Hu 0/8 = - = 0/1 0/2
ARRE
DX Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson 3/4 - - - - -
_ ROELE
i Independent non-executive directors:
S BUFHTEE
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai 17/21 4/4 1/1 1/1 0/1 2/2
HRExE
80 g Mr. LIN Xiaofeng 0/2 = 0/1 0/1 = 0/1
Nan% MRl
@ Mr. ZHU Zhi 1/3 - 1/1 1/1 - 0
+ Dr. FUNG Kam Man 15/19 4/4 - - 1/ 0/1
it Qi
Mr. ZHOU Jing 15/19 4/4 - = 1/ 0/1
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Mr. LIN Xicofeng resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on
1 August 2016. A total of 2 Board meetings, 1 Remuneration
Committee meeting, 1 Nomination Committee meeting and
1 special general meeting were held from 1 July 2016 to the
date of his resignation.

Dr. FUNG Kam Man was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 1 August 2016. A total of 19 Board meetings, 4
Audit Committee meetings, 1 annual general meeting and
1 special general meeting were held from the date of his
appointment fo 30 June 2017.

Mr. TAI Man Hin Tony was appointed and resigned as
an executive Director and a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 13 September 2016 and
1 June 2017 respectively. A total of 19 Board meetings, 1
annual general meeting and 1 special general meeting were
held during his appointment.

Mr. ZHOU Jing was appointed and resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company on 13 September 2016 and 10
August 2017 respectively. A total of 19 Board meetings, 4
Audit Committee meetings, 1 annual general meeting and
1 special general meeting were held from the date of his
appointment to 30 June 2017.

Mr. HUANG Shaokang resigned as an executive Director
of the Company on 23 September 2016. A total of 3 Board
meetings and 1 special general meeting were held from 1
July 2016 to the date of his resignation.

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong resigned as an executive Director
and ceased to be a member of Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 23 September 2016. A total of 3 Board
meetings, 1T Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 special
general meeting were held from 1 July 2016 to the date of his
resignation.
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) (7) Mr. ZHU Zhi resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member of Audit Committee,
<$ Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
+ - the Company on 23 September 2016. A total of 3 Board
+ meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1 Nomination

Committee meeting and 1 special general meeting were
held from 1 July 2016 to the date of his resignation.
DX
(8) Mr. MENG Hu resigned as a non-executive Director of the
$ Company on 19 December 2016. A total of 8 Board meetings,
1 annual general meeting and 2 special general meetings
were held from 1 July 2016 to the date of his resignation.

+ (9@  Mr. Al Kuiyu was appointed as an executive Director of the
- Company on 27 March 2017. A total of 5 Board meetings
were held from the date of his appointment to 30 June 2017.

(10) Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 May 2017. A fotal of 4 Board
meetings were held from the date of his appointment to 30
June 2017.

(11)  Mr. POON Man Sum was appointed as an executive Director
) of the Company on 18 May 2017. A tofal of 1 Board meeting
was held from the date of his appointment to 30 June 2017.
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A7. Required Standard of Dealings

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities
(the "Own Code") on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”). Specific enquiry has been made of the Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Required
Standard of Dealings and the Own Code throughout the
year ended 30 June 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Required Standard of Dealings (the
"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
*www.dxholdings.com” and on the GEM website
“www.hkgem.com”. All the Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommmendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, aft the Company’s expenses.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2017, the Remuneration Committee
comprised a total of three members, namely Mr. FONG Fuk
Wai (Chairman), Dr. FUNG Kam Man and Mr. ZHOU Jing. All
of the Remuneration Committee members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and
the remuneration packages of Directors and members of
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted). The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
fransparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
generally reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company; reviewed the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewed and recommended the remuneration package of
Mr. TAl Man Hin Tony, Mr. Al Kuiyu and Mr. POON Man Sum
upon their appointment as executive Directors; Mr. CHANG
Eric Jackson upon his appointment as a non-executive
Director, as well as Mr. ZHOU Jing and Dr. FUNG Kam Man
upon their appointment as independent non-executive
Directors.

The attendance records of each Committee member at
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2017 are set out in section A6 above.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the senior management for the
year ended 30 June 2017 falls within the band from Nil to
HK$1,000,000.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 30 June 2017 are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

B1.

DX

ooo

FMHEES

RZZB—tFRA=1+H FHEESHE=
EKE - BEARELLE(ZRE)  BHXEL
KEREE - TAFIE S SR B REILIFH
TEE -

B P SR Y A R NGB 126
MEBAREERSREREXRB 2HFMES
MESES R ERECAMRACEERTRIZST
AEB. 2(c) (it 2 1R E) - HEZEE &
TRE B AR BUE IR E BV AR Fr DA I E G R I I
REE  BRESIEEAHEA LIS
BLEAR G H N 2ORE - MABHME2REA
KA RB 2 RBIARTHEBH RARILERT -

RAEE  FHEESCEEEHARR ZH
BER RS BEARREERSRERE
ZHMAS  BRWRBBE L UETF
FERBEXRELEBRZERATESER - R
EEERRERFNTESRURBRELER
BB X TR B IFNTESR 2

aa -

BREEEREHEREE—_T—tFRA=T
BIEFERRITZHNE RS ER 2Ll

RIBEEERTRZFRERXB.1.S - REE
R EFRASTHLFE  RREEEZ
FEFHEEERIEZ 21,000,000 TA

REERBE_TtFRA=TRLFEZ
FrifeH BB AR S BTSRRI 58



B2.

DX

- o~ o

Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

As af 30 June 2017, the Audit Committee comprised a total
of three members, namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman),
Dr. FUNG Kam Man and Mr. ZHOU Jing, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee also possesses the appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing
the financial information and reports of the Group and
considering any significant or unusual items raised by the
financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with
and the terms of appointment of the external auditors and
making the relevant recommendation to the Board; and
reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system and
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements, results announcements
and reports for the year ended 30 June 2016, for the three
months ended 30 September 2016, for the six months
ended 31 December 2016 and for the nine months ended
31 March 2017; the financial reporting and compliance
procedures; the report from the management on the
Company’s risk management and internal control review
and process; the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties; and considered the
re-appointment of external auditors.

The external auditors have afttended two of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 30
June 2017, without the presence of executive Directors, to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

The attendance records of each Committee member at
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended
30 June 2017 are set out in section A6 above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditors.
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Nomination Committee

As at 30 June 2017, the Nomination Committee comprised
a total of four members, being three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman),
Dr. FUNG Kam Man and Mr. ZHOU Jing and one executive
Director, namely, Mr. HUNG Kenneth. The majority of the
Nomination Committee members are independent non-
executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommending any
changes to the Board; identifying qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and selecting and
making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors;
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company,
the Nomination Committee may make reference to
certain criteria such as the Company’s needs, integrity,
experience, skills, professional knowledge and the amount
of time and effort that a candidate will devote to carry
his/her duties and responsibilities. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection
process when necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the
Group; recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 1 November 2016; considered
and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. TAl Man Hin Tony, Mr. Al Kuiyu and Mr.
POON Man Sum as executive Directors; the appointment
of Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson as a non-executive Director,
as well as the appointment of Mr. ZHOU Jing and Dr. FUNG
Kam Man as independent non-executive Directors and
assessment of the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors.
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The Board has adopted the "Board Diversity Policy” setting
out the approach to diversity on the Board. It is believed
that a truly diverse board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industrial
experience, background, gender and other qualities of
members of the board. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for setting
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommends them to the Board for
adoption. The "Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, fo ensure its
effectiveness.

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2017 are set out in section A6 above.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Required Standard of Dealings and the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The management
has provided sufficient explanation and information fo
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Group put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility to evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
tfo ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
confrol systems.

The Group has in place a risk management and internal
control framework that is consistent with the COSO (the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) framework.

The risk management and internal confrols systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Board has
conducted a review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance
controls (e.g. contfinuing connected transactions) and risk
management. Such review have been made by discussion
with the Audit Committee, management and external
internal control consultant of the Company from time to
fime, but at least once a year. The Company also has
an internal audit function to assist the Audit Committee
and the management to conduct internal control review
periodically. The Board will put in place to address
the identified area that shall be enhanced. The Board
considered that the existing risk management and internal
control systems are adequate and effective.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ E. JMEE#ZEBIEN R ZBETEN S
REMUNERATION
The statement of the external auditors of the Company AARGINEZHMBEHE—_ZT—+F <A
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s =+ RIEFEARRRMBRK < BRBE mME
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 is set 2 B RA B A AN F 2R B AZ BRED R | — &7 o
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report”
in this annual report.
The fees paid/payable to Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited, REBEE-_ZT—+tEA=1THILEE  #EZ
the Company’s external auditors, in respect of audit IR R IERIZRIETAT, BN T AR RIINE X
services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June B R B IEHSTMEBAERARNER S
2017 are analyzed below: MR :
Type of services provided by the external auditors Fees paid/payable (HKS$)
MNEZEEMFTREZREEE Bt/ ERER(ET)
Audit services - audit fee for the year ended BERE-EHE_T—tFA=1H
30 June 2017 HFEzB%SE 800,000
Non-audit services - tax service fee, fee relating to FEZRY — BRI E - FIEEA
the special audit, working capital forecast B HEESTRAT fE%F?%Fﬁ
review fee and profit forecast review fee KA EERERNER 226,582
TOTAL: M5t 1,026,582
COMPANY SECRETARY F. Q8E#E

During the year ended 30 June 2017, Mr. LEE Kin Fai, the
Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge. Biographical details of Mr. Lee are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies” in this annual report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relafions
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes
the importance of transparent and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.dxholdings.com as
a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Office J, 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 1, No. 3 On
Kwan Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the shareholder’s meetings.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.
The Company’s shareholders may convene a special
general meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings as follows:
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Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition noft less than one tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
tfo convene a special general meeting pursuant
to clause 58 of the Bye-laws by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the written requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the
requisition or not less than 100 shareholders may
put forward a proposal at a shareholders’ meeting,
pursuant to the laws of Bermuda by sending a written
requisition tfo the Board or the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The proposal should be stated in the
writfen requisition and such written requisition should
be submitted as early as practicable to enable the
Company to make necessary arrangement (in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and in case of
any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
clause 85 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
affend and vote at the general meeting shall send a
written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/
her infention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person fo be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day affer the dispatch of the nofice of such general
meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by laws. Shareholders may refer to the Bye-laws for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

During the Year, the Company has not made any
significant changes to the Bye-laws. An up-to-date version
of the Bye-laws is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
Bye-laws for further details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings of
listed issuers shall be voted by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The poll voting results shall be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each shareholders” meeting.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is fully aware of its obligations under the new
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 effective from 1 January 2013 and the GEM Listing
Rules. In September 2013, a policy has been adopted by
the Board which sets out guidelines to the directors, officers
and all relevant employees of the Group to ensure inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated to the
public in equal and timely manner.

On behalf of the Board

POON Man Sum

z @’_ Chairman
o Hong Kong
+ 22 September 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ascenda CACFEU

RIE|7R[3F]

To the members of DX.com Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands and re-domiciled and
continued on 21 August 2015 in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
DX.com Holdings Limited (the *Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 62 to 187, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statfement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and nofes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
ofther ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A ETE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that contfext.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond fo our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed fo address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B 2 HEN RS

FARESNSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

0]

Recoverability assessment of the loan and interest receivables

FEW B 5 R FE AR 49 AT W BT T A

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and note 18 to the consolidated financial statfements for
further information.

The Group commenced and extended its business into
money-lending during the year.

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan and interest
receivables was approximately HK$94,161,000 as at 30
June 2017.

E—SER B2 B RRMTE24AR3ERESTRERES
SHR - FUE R Af A RAR & B TS $RaR M 718
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EEEN—Z—tFRA=THNEREREF SRR REE
#9/594,161,000/ 7T °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the recoverability of the loan
and interest receivables included:

- Obtaining an understanding of
how management estimated the
recoverability of the loan and interest
receivables and evaluating the
historical accuracy of the impairment
estimation by management (including
the loan agreements and assessment
of the collectability of the borrowers);

- Reviewing management’s assessment
of whether indicators of impairment
exist and evaluating this assessment,
including a challenge of the validity
and completeness of the indicators
identified with reference to our
knowledge of the business obtained
elsewhere in our audit (e.g. the
current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of the borrowers);
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A ETE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARESNSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

»

Recoverability assessment of the loan and interest receivables (Continued)

FEWRE 5 R F 2SR 19 7 W Bl 1 5T (AF)

The recoverability of loan and interest receivables is
estimated by the management through the application
of judgment and estimation. The Group’s policy
for recognition of impairment on loan and interest
receivables is based on the evaluation of recoverability,
ageing analysis and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the recoverability of the loan and interest
receivables including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of the borrowers.

JEYR B SR M) B AR SR AT W 14 e TR 3 3 P T R R
Al o BB W E SRR B AR RADRE 2 BER TR 1%
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AR EE B RGRARER)

Assessing the basis of management’s
assessment of recoverability of the loan
and interest receivables with reference
to the management’s evaluation of
borrowers’ creditworthiness, borrowers’
credit history including default or delay
in payments, borrowers’ settlement
records, subsequent settlements from
borrowers and ageing analysis of each
individual borrowers; and

Recalculating the amount of the
impairment on the loan and interest
receivables, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 30
June 2017.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B AZ BN R S

FARESNSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

(i)

Provision for litigation and legal fee
FAAREEE R

Reference is made fo notes 2.4 and 3 fo the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and esfimates
and notfes 25 and 37 fo the consolidated financial
statements for further information.

The Group is a defendant of a litigation in the U.S. in
respect of its e-commerce business through on-line sales
platforms since August 2012.

Included in the carrying amount of the Group’s other
payables and accruals was provision for litigation and
legal fee of approximately HK$49,452,000, as at 30 June
2017.

The provision for litigation and legal fee is estimated by
the management through the application of judgment
and estimation. The Group’s policy for recognition of
the provision for litigation and legal fee is based on the
prior experience, legal advise and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the possible outcome of the
litigation.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the provision for litigation and
legal fee included:

= Discussing with management and
the Company’s legal advisors to
understand the updated status of the
litigation and the possible outcome of
the litigation;

- Reviewing the related correspondences
between the Group and its legal
advisors as well as correspondence
with the court;

- Understanding and observing in
practice the actions that management
has taken in response to the litigation;
and

- Challenging and recalculating the
amount of the provision for litigation
and legal fee, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the provision for litigation
and legal fee as at 30 June 2017.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A ETE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARESNSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

(i)

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BT

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The Group recognised goodwill with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$17,409,000 as
at 30 June 2017 arising from business combinations
regarding the acquisition of (i) the provision of property
management and property agency services; and (ii)
money-lending business, respectively during the year.

The impairment review of the goodwill is estimated by
the management through the application of judgement
and estimation. The Group’s policy for recognifion of
impairment on goodwill is based on the evaluation of the
future result of the related cash generating unit ("CGU").
The management has prepared future cash flow
forecasts (the “Forecasts”) to determine the recoverable
amount of each CGU. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the recoverable
amount of the CGU including the discount rate, growth
rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and turnover.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

- Discussing with management and the
independent valuer to understand
the basis of valuation approach and
methodology, which is prepared based
on the Forecasts;

- Corroborating the management’s
assumptions with applicable
external benchmarks used within an
acceptable range;

- Assessing the historical accuracy of
the Forecasts, and sought appropriate
evidence for the major assumptions,
including the discount rate, growth
rate, terminal growth rate, gross
margin and turnover, used by the
management in assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU;

- Recalculating the amount of the
impairment on the goodwill, if any,
and assessing the sufficiency of the
impairment as at 30 June 2017.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BN 2B S

FARESNSEE»

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

REGFHREBRENSHE LG E

)

Impairment assessment of other intangible assets
Hitt | & ERER

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The carrying amount of the Group’s other intangible
assets of HK$3,900,000 was arising from three on-line sales
platforms relevant to business of e-commerce segment.
Two of the on-line sales platforms had been closed down
in 2013 and 2017 and fully impaired in the amount of
HK$19,260,000 and HK$1,715,000 during the years ended
30 June 2013 and 2017, respectively.

The impairment review of the other infangible assets is
estimated by the management through the application
of judgement and estimation. The Group’s policy for
recognition of impairment on other intangible assets
is based on the evaluation of the recoverable amount
of the intangible assets. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the recoverable
amount of the other intangible assets including the
discount rate, growth rate, royalty rate and turnover.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of included:

Discussing with management and the
independent valuer to understand
the basis of valuation approach and
methodology;

Corroborating the management’s
assumptions with applicable
external benchmarks used within an
acceptable range;

Assessing the historical accuracy of
the budgeted turnover of on-line sales
platform, and sought appropriate
evidence for the major assumptions,
including the discount rate, growth
rate and royalty rate used by fthe
management in assessing the
recoverable amount of the other
intangible assets; and

Recalculating the amount of the
impairment on the ofher intangible
assets, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 30
June 2017.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A ETE S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The ofther information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is fo read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such infernal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and fo issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability fo any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's infernal confrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A ETE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability fo continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the datfe of our auditor’s
report. However, fufure events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
represent the underlying tfransactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group o express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
ofther matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and fo communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our audifor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
exfremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Chi Yuen.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02671

Hong Kong
22 September 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RE
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’000
s FERx FHT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
REVENUE PN 4,5 323,154 399,736
Cost of sales and services & 58 B BRI R AR 6 (216,369) (253,031)
Gross profit EA 106,785 146,705
Other income and gains HA A R iz 5 4,448 4,508
Selling and distribution costs $HE Mo SRR (80,135) (123,580)
Administrative expenses THRE A (81.557) (135,248)
Finance costs A& AR 7 (349) (7.084)
LOSS BEFORE TAX MR ATE R 6 (50.808) (114,699)
Income tax expenses FriSti & /A 10 (182) (222)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM AEERAFESEERER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (50,990) (114,921)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIEREER
Profit for the year from disconfinued — AFE G R&R I & EIEAF
operation 11 = 2,006
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REERBELIEFEBH
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BEF = 2,006
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEBIR (50,990) (112,915)
Loss attributable to: AT &R EIEETE
Owners of the Company ZA/NSIEZZSUN (50.892) (112,832)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R (98) (83)
(50,990) (112,915)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATEBRERISE ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ZBREE
THE COMPANY 13
Basic - Loss for the year AR -FKFEEE (2.41) cents#&fll  (16.31) centsi&il
- Loss from continuing — FHEIS S TG AN F
operations EEiE (2.41) centsi&fll  (16.61) centsiEl
Diluted - Loss for the year BE - AFEEE (2.41) centsi&fll  (16.31) centsEfl
- Loss from continuing — FHEIC S TG AN F
operations EEE (2.41) cents#Efll  (16.61) centsi#ill
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 30 June 2017 &E—=%

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Loss for the year REEHE (50,990) (112,915)
Other comprehensive income to be HAbira e A B S5 AR
reclassified o profit or loss BFHERER
in subsequent periods:
- Exchange differences arising on —BIIRINEEREE 2
franslation of foreign operations N =R (305) (1.571)
- Decrease in fair value of available-for- — A HEEREATEZRD
sales investments ©979) (21,379)
- Release of investment revaluation —REEHIEERENREMR
reserve upon disposal of (EXE A= 1EE
available-for-sales investments (5.695) -
- Reclassification adjustment fo —HAHHEREEEREREE
profit or loss on impairment loss REFFHRAE
on available-for-sales investments 88 27,570
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE A F 2 KM
YEAR (57.881) (108,295)
Total comprehensive income attributable FEE 2 E R85
to:
Owners of the Company NAREB A (57.783) (108,182)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A (98) 13)
(57.881) (108,295)
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Consolido’red Statement of Financial Position

Re MBI R

30 June 2017 —ZE—+F/A=+H

2017 2016
—E2—tHF ZE—RF
No‘rgs HK$'000 HK$'000
P =E FHET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 14 983 1,284
Goodwill SRS 15 17.409 -
Other intangible assets Eﬁﬂ?ﬁ%iﬁ% 16 3,900 5,615
Available-for-sales investments HEERE 17 29,700 56,151
Loan and interest receivables ﬁﬂﬁlfm&ﬂ SERN 18 20,000 -
Total non-current assets IEMBNEEAATE 71,992 63,050
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 19 2,807 -
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 20 4,197 653
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRIE - Ee Rk
receivables H b FEGRIE 21 78,100 115,407
Loan and interest receivables FEUE SR M F) B BR R 18 74,161 -
Equity investments at fair value RO E AR RRIRE
through profit or loss 22 219 5,472
Pledged deposits [mEAECEES 23 310 20,218
Cash and cash equivalents HehREFEER 23 94,458 30,017
Total current assets BB ERTE 254,252 171,767
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade payables BB SER 24 19,658 34,296
Other payables and accruals HAhFEAFIE R ERT B S 25 63,231 54,756
Deposits received in advance iz 26 1,487 3,746
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FTRRITIER 27 - 10,000
Tax payable TS 761 -
Total current liabilities BB EERE 85,137 102,798
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 169,115 68,969
Net assets EEFE 241,107 132,019
EQUITY e
Equity aftributable to owners of the AR AIHEA AEIERELZ
Company
Share capital [N 29 27,762 13,986
Reserves G 30 213,365 117,955
241,127 131,941
Non-controlling inferests FEIERR I = (20) 78
Total equity BRmE 241,107 132,019
POON MAN SUM Al KUIYU
B XEF
Director Director
EE EE
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Year ended 30 June 2017

Consolidated Statement of Chcnges in Equity
BARGFESE

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=-F—+F X XA=1TAILLFE

BE-Z—tFXA=Z+THLFE

Attrioutable fo owners of the Company

KRARBREAER
Treasury
share Available-
Contributed Teserve/ forsales
surplus/ Capital Share investment  Exchange  Accumu- Non-
Share Share Capital ~ redemption opfion revaluation  fluctuation lated controling Total
copital  premium resenve resenve resenve resenve reserve losses Tofol  inferests equily
EERA ftaE

RiBR/ @R/ BRE  REGE  fERE
Br RfeE  EAEE RERR fife i i EHER s FERER RS
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
i1 Tin i1 i1 7 iR A ThR T#n i1 Tin

AHT July 201
Lossforthe year
QOther comprehensive income
forthe year:
Exchange difference arising on
anslafion of foreign operations
Decrease in fair value of
avallableforsoles investments
Release of investment revaluation
resenve upon disposal of availcble-
forsoles investments
Reclassifcaion acjusiment fo
proft or loss on impaimentloss
on available-forsales invesiments

Totol comprenensive income
forthe year
Issue of shores, net of shares issued
£10enses
- July 2016 GM Placing
(note 29(b)(ih)
- Ocfober 2016 M Placing
(note 29(o) i)
- Aprll 2017 GM Placing
(note 29(b)())
Fauiy-seffled share opfion
arongements (nofe 31)
Exercise of share options
(notes 29(a) (i) and note 31)

At30 June 2017

W-E-rFLA-A
TERER
RERApAERE

ERHIRREL B R
THHERELTEZY

REETHLERRNRRRERR
o}

HAREERENARNEERNE
HAERE

FERRTNESR

ERBEARRA
EG
-Z3REtA-RRERES
B(E9(0)()
ZEETRARARRSS
B(HE9(o)(i)
-JE-HEMA-RRERES
H(HEN0)H)

NEEEEERERE )

fifeEmRE
()R
HoT-tFRESTE
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Consolidc’red Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEERDE

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

Year ended 30 June 2016 BE_T—"EA=THLFE

Affrioutable fo owners of the Company

ARARERRARE
Treasury
share Available- Retained
Contibuted ~~ reseve/ forsoles proffs/
surplus/ Captal Shore  investment  Exchange  (Accumu- Non-
Share Share Copifal  redempfion opfion  revaluation fluctuafion ofed confroling Total
capffal ~ premium reserve resenve resene Tesene Tesenve losses) Total inferesfs equiy
ERRA e
B4RY/  BR/EX Bl RERE  NEFD  REEA/
k& EEE  EAE 0k @ #h B (2HER) A FARER  ERgE

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSQ00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKS00  HKSO0D  HKS000
TR TR TR TEL TR TARL TAL TAL TR TR TR

AT July 2015 WZE-RELA-A 56,040 44,75 (18124) 3526 - - (@134 33456 115,520 1039 116,559
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - - (283) (11283 ) (112915)
Other comprehensive income TEEAfRENR

forthe year:

Eichange difference arisingon ~ BRI EREELZES2E

ranslation of foreign operafions - - - - - - (1.541) - (1.541) (30) (1.57)

Decreose infoir value of AL ERERTEZRD

availablefor-sales invesiments - - - - - (21319 - - (21319 - 21319

Reclassfication ajusiment fo AT ERENEREER
profit or loss on impairment loss RENERE

on availableorsales investments - - - - - 21,510 - - 21510 - 2510
Total comprehensive income TERRENELE

forthe year - - - - S M) (28 (818) (1) (06%%)
Share consoldafion and Ripa b RBFEH(E9(0)

capital reduction (nofe 29(a)) (50436) - 50436 - - - - - - - -
Transferto confributed surplus SRETARR(NE)

(role ) S W - - - - - - - -
Release upon disposal of IHENBRTRBR(H3)

subsidiaries (nofe 33) - - - - - - 5543 - 5,543 (926) 4617
Issue of shores, nef of shore issued — EARHEMRRA

expenses il

- Jonuary 2016 GM placing -2 RE-f-REE

(e B0)0) REBAHN0)) w2 - - - - - - B - B

Rights issue of shores (note 29(c) MR AEIRA(H9(c)) 6724 75,508 - - - - - - 82,232 - 82,232
Fouityseftled share opfion W EEERERH (M)

arrangements (nofe 31) - - - - 6021 - - - 6,021 - 6,021
Exercise of share opfions i

(notes 29(6)() and 31) (HERE@OEN) 5 87 - ) - - Y -
Acquisfion of non-confroling W -EHBL TR

inferestin a subsidiry (nofe 32) i3) - - - - - - - - - 78 8
AF30 June 2016 R S A S Lk O M ) B 1200

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * B AR S TR E BN & #9213,365,000
of HK$213,365,000 (2016: HK$117,955,000) in the consolidated BILRER S HEE(ZZ—75F £ 117,955,0007T) ©

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AR ERERK
Year ended 30 June 2017 HE—Z—+F NA=1THILFE

2017 2016
—E2—tHF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BieE FET FA&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEROBESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BREBAT(E1R)/ s
From continuing operations R B RS & 5 (50,808) (114,699)
From discontinued operation RER IS EET = 354
Adjustments for: e
Finance costs [ELE I 7 349 7.230
Bank interest income SRITHBURA 5 (157) (86)
Dividend income from equity AT EMAER I RE
investments at fair value through REFTFIREMA
profit or loss 5 12) @)
Fair value loss on equity BATESABR RS
investments at fair value through "E RN ERE
profit or loss 6 9,487 6,226
Depreciation e 6,14 1,127 1,787
Write off of property, plant and WIEME - BB REE
equipment - 34
Gain on disposal of a domain M B s
name 5,6 (2,028) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant  H&EWE - BE KLEE
and equipment 25 ) 6,14 (83) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEER 6,33 - 1,932
Loss on disposal of an available- HEHNEREZEE
for-sales investments 6 384 2,029
Impairment loss on an available- A HERERERE
for-sales investments 6,17 88 27,570
Impairment of other intangible HimEEERE
assets 6,16 1.715 -
Equity-settled share option MRA A5 B R AR A 5 S
expenses 6 710 6,021
(39.228) (61,609)
Increase in inventories FEEN (2.807) -
Increase in trade receivables JENE 5 BRFIE N (2.979) (260)
Increase in loans and interest FEUS B R R T BRI AN
receivable (45,693) -
Decrease in prepayments, deposits  FEFIE - &E R H ALK
and other receivables TER 37.515 3,830
Increase in equity investments at fair 22 EFFABZRE 2 R
value through profit or loss, net REIEINFEE (4.234) (11,698)
(Decrease)/increase in frade FEE SRR CRA) N
payables (14,638) 8,631
Increase/ (decrease) in other Hih s E R EaE
payables and accrual i CRid) 8,460 (5,748)
Decrease in deposits received in TEWUE SR
advance (2,259) (4.099)
Cash used in operations IR TSR AR S (65.863) (70,953)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BT EBFIEH (200) -
Overseas taxes paid BRSNS @31 (222)
Net cash flows used in operating KEXEBrRexFE
activities (66.094) (71.175)

2017 s8R | DX.comiZARER A A




Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

s =
an\ Eﬁi/}lbi#&%
Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

*

2017 2016
—E2—tHF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BieE FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Bank inferest received BRI TR E 157 86
Purchases of items of property, plant BEE %% - BE L&E2EE
and equipment 14 (658) 397)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEREZ
plant and equipment FriS 508 85 1
Net proceeds from disposal of L EHTE AR 2 TS RIEF 5
subsidiaries 33 - 43,656
Dividend received B S 12 7
Acquisition of subsidiaries U R B A ) 32 (66.015) (703)
Purchases of available-for-sales EEAHEERE
investments - (46,318)
Proceeds from disposal of a domain & E& A8 E
name 5,6 2,028 -
Proceeds from disposal of HE R ERE SRR
available-for-sales investments 19,393 5,457
Decrease/ (increase) in pledged BHEMEFEZRD (L)
deposits 19,908 (235)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEERS RS (W), FiE
investing activities HER (25.090) 1,554
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEITBHZ2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid ERAE (349) (7,230)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PRISRIE 29 166,259 113,039
Repayment of bank loan EEBRITER 27 (10,000) -
Repayment of note payables* BEEMNEE - (81,700)
Net cash flows from financing MERBZRESFE
activities 155,910 24,109
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R&REEEHIER #hn,
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R F8E 64,726 (45,512)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRE KRS EEIER
beginning of year 30,017 77,000
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNER ) 2 AR - T
changes, net (285) (1.477)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRRESRBLEEER
END OF YEAR 94,458 30,017
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBESESEBEERINT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTAETT 23 94,458 30,017

All note payables had been repaid during year ended 30

*

June 2016, no note payable was issued during the year and
outstanding as at 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

DX.com Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 15 March 2000 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
2 August 2000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 6 August 2015, the domicile of the Company has been
changed from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of
de-registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as
an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The re-
domicile was completed on 21 August 2015.

The change of domicile has no impact on the continuity
and the listing status of the Company.

The registered office of the Company was located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamitlon HM11,
Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Office J, 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 1, No. 3 On Kwan Street,
Sha Tin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in e-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform. During the year, the
Group extended its business into the operation of (i)
money-lending business; and (ii) provision of property
management and property agency services in Hong Kong
through the acquisition of certain subsidiaries.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

DEIREEEH
DX.comZR AR AR ([AAF DR =TEE
FZATHARBHEREAREEREMHS
FMKLAEREERA - RAFROHR=Z
ZTFE\A_AEBBHARIMERAA
(M2 P DRIZFAR (TRIZFIR ) £

RIEN —ZF—AF\ANBRBRRRBRS
MASEBRFRIRAR - AABRRHR
BERENRASES 2EM - BARE ZEEM
WHBRASHSEERAAREMRIBAREX
PIAERE AR AFEFE - BN =Z
—HFNAZFT—HZEK °

BITEAR R R 2 R N s 3 SR (T

7

7NN 7] 5 #% = R £z 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

RRAFEBEXMHET BN BELRES
SRR RS 1 BI2118UE -

REEZ TREH R EFEBTHIEN R L
EFa - FR - ARBEERBKBEETHEAR
DEREBZ()EEER  R>)EEBRME
MEERE R YERERT -

B2 RER
EEMBARZFERIIMT -

Percentage
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration and  registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
BRAY HRE  ERIZER/
&8 Fd ookl HMER AARBREDN TBER
Direct Indirect
B# EF
EPRO E-commerce Group Limifed British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 - Investment holdings
(note ¢)(Miztc) HEERIES 100570 REER
EPRO E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HKS$100 - 100 E-commerce and provision
EEFEBERAA BE 100 7T of onine sales platform
BFHEHR
REMIHETR
Geekdigg Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holdings
BEEREEXERAA B 10,0007 7T REER
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2 EIREEER »
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MELRER (#)

Percentage

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ of equity

registrationand  registered share affributable fo
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities

HMEL/ AR BRTEER/

£B ey HER EAERRADL EE:50

Direct Indirect

E# 3
EHRIEERMERAR The People’ s Republic 15$100,000 - 100 E-commerce and
(notes a & ) (Fizafke) of China (the "PRC") 100,000 provision of onine
PEARLAE([HE) sales platform
BTEBR
REAHETS
MITERETHEERAR PRC RMB500,000 - 100 E-commerce and
(notes a & ) (Fizafke) P 500,000\ &% provision of onine
sales platform
BTEBR
REBHETS
Dragon Champ E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 E-commerce and
(formerly known as Dragon Champ B 18T provision of on-ine
Investment Limited) (nofe b) sales platform
ERETANARLA BTEBR
(REAEEREARAF) (Hib) REBLEEYS
Lujolujo Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$60,000 96.17 - Dormant
BR 60,000/ RBEH
Success Beauty Limited (nofe d) Brifish Virgin Islands Us$2 100 - Investment Holdings
HERRAR () ARRLHE BT (2016:Nil ) RARR
Ever Great Finance Limited (nofe d) Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Moneyending business
EEHBERAR (itd) BR 137 (2016:Nil %) e
Keenway Capital Investment Ltd Brifish Virgin Islands Us$100 100 - Dormant
(nofe c)(fiztc) ARRLHE 100%7 RBEH
Central Pearl Investment Limited (note &) British Virgin Islonds Us$100 100 - Investment Holdings
SEREBRAR Mite) ARRLHE 100%7 (2016:Nil ) RARR
Full Profit Property Services Company Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Provision of property
Limited (note &) B 17T (2016:N1 &) management ond
EENERBER A (ke) property agency services
RUDREER
EE
Rainbow Easy Limited (nofe g) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading
BEER LA B 10,0007 (2016:Nil &) 25



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Group has a
structured entity during the year ended 30 June 2017 and

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

1. AEIREBEN »)

MEBARER &)

b= NI D

RZZE—+FA=+H

FER  AEE—FEREBKRIIAR - £

its information is as follows: BERIT :
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered share attributable to Principal
Name operations capital the Company activities
ML R BERTEER
£ =ik EfER AARRBRADEL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
H# s
Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information PRC RMB8,700,000 - - Dormant
Technology Limited HE 8,700,000 A & REES
AIEREEEERITERAR
(notes ¢ &) (Fifztc &f)

Notes: BeE -

(@) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign owned (@ WEMBATTDRESEAREEM SIS
enterprises under the PRC law. B

(b) The name of subsidiary was changed to Dragon Champ by HEZZE—A"ENAT-BZHBARBRES
E-commerce Limited on 12 August 2016. REERETEBERAR -

(¢)  Not audited by Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited. () YFMRERGEIMEBHAERAREE

Fat o

(d) As detailed in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial (d) HBAERAMBWEMEI2( Q)T - ZEHTB
statements, these subsidiaries were newly acquired on 7 RNAEIRZZ—"F+ A BFEKRE -
October 2016.

(e) As detailed in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial (6) WUAREMIEMKRMT32(0) it - ZEHTE
statements, these subsidiaries were newly acquired on 1 REIRZE—RNFE+— A —BFHEUKEE -
December 2016.

()  Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information Technology Limited ® RYEREEELSEMERAR(DRYIFER
("Shenzhen Huakai Fugui®) is a structured entity controlled by BE|)E—EEREBKIAR - NARE
the Group. The Directors of the Company are of the opinion ERAAEBAERGFRIITERE ENITE
that the Group has the power to govern the financial and REEBEHNENEEAHERBNERER 248
operating policies of Shenzhen HuaKai Fugui and is required BB RERNA o
to consolidate its result into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

(@) This subsidiary was newly incorporated during the year. @) EMBARRANFEEFEML

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

BEEZRA  ERAFINARAIMBRREER
BRFEEEIBRAEEREEFENTZS
7 BERR  NHEMHBARNFE/RS
RIRBRILR
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/T\

BB HmRM T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™), and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except for
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sales investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded
fo the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and a
structured entity (collectively referred to as the "Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
confrolled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee). When the
Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2.1 RIZEAE

NREWBEHRERIBBEESSTMAS ([EE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 fRIZEZE ()

Basis of consolidation (Confinued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries and a
structured entity are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries and a structured entity
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if it results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balances. All
infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating fo fransactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary
and a structured entity, without a loss of conftrol, is
accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary or a structured
entity, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary or a structured entity, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first fime for the current year’'s consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments fo HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments fo HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle

Except for HKFRS 14 which is not relevant to the preparation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the amendments are described

below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011) mainly clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements is
available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary
of an investment entity, even if the investment
entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in
accordance with HKFRS 10. The Company is not an
investment entity. Also, given that the Company is a
listed entity, the consolidation exception set out in the
amendments will not be applicable fo the Company
and hence the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Inifiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation
and disclosure in the financial statements. The
amendments clarify:

®

)

(iii)

)

the material requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and the statement of financial position
may be disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial position
and the statement of profit or loss. The amendments
have had no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

C))

©)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
assets is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are
applied prospectively. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) allow entities to
use the equity method to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
their separate financial statements. Entities already
applying HKFRSs and electing fo change to the equity
method to account for investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in their separate
financial statements are required to apply the
change retrospectively.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that
are effective for the current year are as follows:

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a
plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
Accordingly, there is no change in the application
of the requirements in HKFRS 5. The amendments
also clarify that changing the disposal method does
not change the date of classification of the non-
current assets or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions 2

Financial Instrument 2

Sale or Contribution of Assefs between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture *

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers 2

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers 2

Leases ®

Disclosure Initiative !

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses '

Transfers of Investment Property 2

Foreign Currency Transaction and
Advance Consideration?
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment ®

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 - Amendments to a number of HKFRSs 2

Cycle
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2 Ef?;iﬁve for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
8 Ef?;iﬁve for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
o l%l?)](r?nondofory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
fo be applicable to the Group is as follows:

(a) HKFRS 2 - Share-Based Payment

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-
seftled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment fransaction
with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order fo meet the employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment fransaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
seffled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used fo account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments infroduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share
seftflement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-seftled share-based
payment transaction, the fransaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 July 2018. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

©

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project fo replace HKAS 39
and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
infroduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 July
2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the standard upon adoptfion and expects that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets.

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) - Sales or
contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and ifs associate or joint venture consfitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the fransaction is recognised in the investor’'s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venfure. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments
tfo HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be defermined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for application now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
(d) HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended
to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 July 2018 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(e) HKFRS 16 - Leases

2.3 EEMERERZEBH R

H£28] )

H ==

(e) BBMBIHMELERFEI655-H

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e.. the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will confinue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1
July 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

®

)

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure
Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments will result in additional disclosure to
be provided in the financial statements. The Group
expects fo adopt the amendments from 1 July 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the
purpose of addressing the recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses related to debt
instruments measured at fair value, although they
also have a broader application for other situations.
The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax law restricts
the sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 July 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12 upon adoption.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(h) Amendments to HKAS 40 - Transfer to

®

Investment Property

The amendments clarify that, to transfer to or from,
investment properties, there must be a change in use.
A change in use would involve (a) an assessment of
whether a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the
definition of investment property; and (b) supporting
evidence that a change in use has occurred. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
July 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
amendments to HKAS 40 upon adoption.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency
Transaction and Advance Consideration

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 is set out in accordance with HKAS
21 “The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rate” requires an entity fo record a foreign currency
transaction by applying the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. HKAS 21 states that
the date of the transaction is the date on which
the transaction first qualifies for recognition in
accordance with HKFRSs. When an entity pays or
receives consideration in advance in a foreign
currency, it generally recognises a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability before the recognition
of the related asset, expense or income. HK(IFRIC)-
Int 22 addresses how to determine a date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use an initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income when an entity has
received or paid advance consideration in a foreign
currency. The Group expects to adopt HK (IFRIC)-
Int 22 from 1 July 2018 and is currently assessing the
impact of HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 upon adoption.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

() HK(FRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty are Income
Tax Treatment

The accounting for uncertain tax treatments set
out in HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 requires an entity to make
estimates and judgements about whether the
relevant taxation authority will accept the position
taken by the entity in its tax filings. HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
requires those estimates and judgements to be
reassessed if the facts and circumstances on which
those estimates and judgements are based change,
or as a result of new information that affects the
estimates and judgements. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 July 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
upon adoption.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration fransferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group fo the former
owners of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value
or af the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designatfion in accordance with the
confractual terms, economic circumstances and perfinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separatfion of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Gooduwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity inferests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generatfing units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
ofher assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
unifs or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the disposed operatfion and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
market parficipants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market parficipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
info account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it fo another market participant that would
use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation tfechniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether fransfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash generating unit’s value in use
and ifs fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited fo the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related o the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary or the other entity);

(iiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or fo the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises ifs purchase price and any directly affributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at infervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
fo its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33'/,%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, af least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Infangible assets (Other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value atf the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of infangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Infangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the infangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least af each financial year end.

Intfangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
fo finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects fo develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
infention to complete and its ability fo use or sell the asseft,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources fo complete the project and
the ability fo measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
dose not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
commencing from the date when the products are put info
commercial production.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus fransaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except for the case of financial assets recorded aft fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assefts at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as af fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 and
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
fo those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated as fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking info account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/T\
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intenfion and
ability fo hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sales financial investments

Available-for-sales investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-sales
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are infended
fo be held for an indefinite period of fime and which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sales financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sales investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is defermined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Dividends earned are reported
as dividend income, and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sales financial investments
(Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sales financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
fo inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets, if management has the ability and
infention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sales category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

0 the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
0 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has enfered into pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor fransferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In the case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assetfs is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues o be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
fransferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted af
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/T\

BB HmRM T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses af the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. "Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss - is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Increases in their fair value affer impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgment. In making this judgment the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2.4 FEEFBEREE )

BB EERE @)

AR ERERE
HAIMRHERFZREM S - AEERNSRED
RetHh R A A TBRBER I AR FAREL
EE/BME ©

Al E B E RBUR(E - IR (FNERE
AN S # ) AR B N PE 2 R ZE 88 ORE
WA BERER Zﬁ@).ﬁr 2 RN EA
2EKRETIG - TGS BRRRTHER

MOBAAHRNEZRARENS @ FEEE
FEBIRIRE 2 D EARNESHF:F AR ERA o
[ K18 | Ty ERZTRIR A < [REX R EL & R - 1
H%RJE'J}£®$1Efﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ2$z7%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁé¥
EARBRRLIVRE  REER AR
$1EZF§¢%E*+EZE%E+EET%(ﬂ@fiﬁﬁf?f
EZIETxﬁﬁM R MR REEER) R
o2 E W T 5 [% WRERA R R P ER
ﬁiﬁ?%ﬂf#\ﬁ%ZHﬁﬁiﬁﬁ  HREREETE
fReBEREL - RERAFEZIERETS
E&Eﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁl& SR HERR ©

FEEBHEES[ B A - NEE
PRZNFEERE— b - HERHEIIEE
IR B AFEEREKAR



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, if the subsequent increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring affer the impairment loss was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable fransaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowing and note payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as af fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they
are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
tferm. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for tfrading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss and designated af the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 and
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

2.4 FEEFBEREE )

Ey S=VE )
BANFEFAAESZHEEE

BAHEF ABS 2 M BRERRFEXS A
w2 BB RN ERERR ST RRAT
Eff ABEzMEEE -

MEaBEMAERER SBRNMBE - BIDMR
AEFEEEMBAE - LR AEeREASEM
RIS A ARIEERLEHRAER(ERRETB G E
A3 ) P2 EPTAZATASHT A - &
AARAITET AT RO BEAFERSE - W
HERBREPTARIN - HERXSRE A
& EEGENEAIRERAER - REaRE
RANER /A FEBRFRAL T REZETH
BEEEZFIE -

IR 1 E SR A TER BRI B
BREEZENE LS ERFION 2 1RLEE
WNNaHER 2 B BHEE -

ERREER

BRMERE - stRERREEREERAEERFNR
TEIRE ARG R - WBRR 2 BLTEX
AIRAASIER - B REETER A AR - B E
R SR AR AN AR B IR R R

BSERAD FT ABEREITEZOR(E - TRt ABR
BERMEMEERD 2 BRAEKA o BERA=E
HET AR A EER AR -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantee conftracts

Financial guarantee confracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails fto make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instfrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability af its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable fo the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
the best estimate of the expenditure required fo settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilifies

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
tferms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Offsefting of financial insfruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an infenfion to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis in
finished goods. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including ferm deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in
advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred revenue
is released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the corresponding services are rendered.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
fo be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted fo their present values as appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred ftax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all faxable
temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of faxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be confrolled and if is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assetfs are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that faxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
tfo the extent that it is probable that the tfemporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available fo allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
fo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates o an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is infended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
fo the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value of the
non-monetary assets and released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful lives of
the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with
no or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction
of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the
government loans is determined using the effective interest
rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the
government loans granted with no or at a below-market
rate of inferest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received,
is freated as a government grant and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@

®)

©

C))

©)

®

@

tfrading of goods via e-commerce, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

provision of on-line sales platform, when the services
are rendered;

inferest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

from property management and property agency
services, when the services are rendered;

from rendering of professional IT contract services,
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “*Contract for
services” below;

provision of maintenance services, on a fime
proportion basis over the maintenance period; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises
the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts
from variation orders, claims and incentive payments
arising from professional IT contract services. Contract
costs incurred comprise equipment and material costs,
subcontracting costs, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of work completed to date to
the estimated fotal work of the relevant contract. Where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anficipated by management. Where contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as
an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed conftract costs incurred tfo date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
freated as an amount due fo contract customers.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer confributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The confributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the cenfral
pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-seftled fransactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a "Binomial Model”.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of the reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a year represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken info account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other condifions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been
met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include
a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
tfreated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original ferms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial fo the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-seftled award is cancelled, it is tfreafed
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the confrol of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are freated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding opftions is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presenfted
in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"), which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using ftheir respective functional currency rates ruling at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or franslation of monetary items are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates atf the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated info Hong Kong dollars af
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulfing exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

2.4 FEEFBEREE )

SN

ZEEAPBHmRAET(ET]) » AIARF
MG ER2H - AREARERBTETH
FEMEEER - FERNMBHERIREHIA
FrETHRE B HETE - NEEM B REFTCERAIIN
BRXZMPREZTERR S BEREEES

FERHME AR - PINERHENEREER AR
AR R @ E B KA E A R i
8o BB ERRAREEL AEL R

-
REREBERIER o

ASNEEIRE L XA T EBHIIFEIRE - FRAH
AR 7 HHERGE o DASMNEIR A TERE
BZEEHIER A EATEE BHEXR
8o QMERATEAENIFERRE MESL
BiEaE - MEZER R T EEPHNIEEER
(AR EfEE s iEmh R E N FER
mAVR B MERZR - o IR E M2 E R
SHARER T HER)

HTEINMBARZNEEELIFET - R
SR ZEERZEERAR  RBEHR
ZEXRMBE BB - REZBRRARZFE
Z IR IE R E AT o

PREEAE 2 T BRI A 2 [ W as R RS, -
WHEE S B H AR RET - HEFINERSES -
HLSZ RSN RIS A B 2 Lt 2 [ e BB D AR
BRARTER



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
franslated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Income faxes

Significant judgements on the future tax freatment of
certain fransactions are required in defermining income tax
provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
fransactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in fax
legislation.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgments (Continued)

Classification between available-for-sales
investments and equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss

The Group defermines whether an equity investment is an
available-for-sales investment or equity investment through
profit or loss, based on the infention of time to be held.
Judgement is made on the classification of newly acquired
equity investments in accordance with HKAS 39.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for impairment of frade receivables
and loan and interest receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of trade
receivables and loan and interest receivables of the
Group is based on the assessment of collectability, ageing
analysis and management’s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group are deteriorated, resulfing in an impairment of their
ability fo make payments, additional allowances may be
required.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred fax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be ufilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assetfs that can be
recognised, based upon the likely fiming and level of future
tfaxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in note 28 tfo the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment of similar nafture
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovation. Management will change the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different from
the previously estimated lives. It will also write-off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Contingent liabilities in respect of litigation and
claim

The management of the Group has been engaged in a
litigation and claim during the year. Contingent liabilities
arising from this litigation and claim has been assessed by
management with reference to legal advices. Provisions
on the possible obligation, if appropriate, is made based
on management’s best estimates and judgements. Further
details are stated in note 37 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of gooawill

The management of the Group determines whether
goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. During the year ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June
2016, no impairment of goodwill was provided. Further
details are stated in note 15 fo the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets (other than
goodwill)

The management of the Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are test for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries

The policy for the provision for impairment of amounts
due from subsidiaries is based on the evaluation of
recoverables of accounts and on the management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of the amount.

Provision for impairment of inferests in
subsidiaries and a sfructured entity

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries and a
structured entity are required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries and a structured
entity in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for impairment of available-for-sales
investments

The determination of whether available-for-sales
investments are impaired requires significant judgement.
For listed available-for-sales investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. In assessing
whether it is prolonged, the decline is evaluated against
the period in which the fair value of the asset has been
below ifs original cost. In assessing whether it is significant,
the decline in fair value is evaluated against the original
cost of the asset at initial recognition. The Group also takes
info account other factors, such as the historical data on
market volatility and the price of the specific investment,
significant changes in technology, markets, economies
or the law, as well as industry and sector performance
and the financial information regarding the investee that
provide evidence that the cost of the equity securifies
may not be recoverable. This requires a significant level of
management judgement which would affect the amount
of impairment losses in profit or loss and detailed in note 17
fo the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group was principally engaged in e-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform. During the year, the
Group extended its businesses info (i) money-lending
business; and (ii) provision of property management and
property agency services in Hong Kong.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
info business units based on their nature and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) e-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform;
(b) money-lending business; and

(c) provision of property management and property
agency services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment (loss)/profit, which is a measure of adjusted loss
before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group'’s loss
before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, gain/(loss) from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sales
investments, as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from such measurement.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RBREFWEHR =)
(Continued)

Segment assetfs exclude available-for-sales investments, FEEYEBFEIHEERE A FER
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and i ERERMASBILRBEEE
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these RREBEEDNRSBEEER
assetfs are managed on a group basis.
Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowing DEEBIEBIE 25 BRITERNMA DA A
and unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as BREEEE  RELAZZFAEIREEER
these liabilities are managed on a group basis. B o
Year ended 30 June 2017 BE—_E—+tENA=tHILLEE
Continuing operations
RESERHE
Provision of
property
E-commerce management
and provision Money-  and property
of on-ine lending agency
sales platform business services
segment segment segment Total
EFEBR RtME
RE@LE - EBRYERE .
HEFEDH REFBIH PR 2 # 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#gn Tign TiEn Tign
Segment revenue bin:L/ON 316,294 2,973 3,887 323,154
Segment other income AHEMBA 3,826 2 30 3,858
Segment results ARFE (33.394) 2,833 839 (29.722)
Unallocated other income and gains RABE ﬁ”ﬁl?\&”ﬁlﬁn 590
Unallocated expenses R B (21,327)
Loss from operations LERE (50,459
Finance costs I (349
Loss before tax BheEE (50,808
Income tax expenses FrismER (182
Loss for the year TEEEE (50,990)
Segment assets AHEE 123,234 94,813 2,085 220,132
Unallocated assets Kol BE 106,112
Total assets BEE 326,244
Segment liabilities AHEE 82,570 - 45 82,615
Unallocated liabilities Kol EE 2,522
Total liabilities Bag 85,137
Capital expenditure BARY 658 - 190 848
Unallocated capital expenditure KB BRAZ -
848
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 1,062 - 65 1,127
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation & H 2478 K& -
1,127
Impairment loss of other infangible asset £t &R BERERBE 1,715 - - 1,715
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=ZT—+tFA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFHEH =

(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2016 HE_Z—R"EA=THILFE
Continuing Discontinued
operation operation
RS X% R 2T
E-commerce Professional
and provision [T confract and
of on-line maintenance
sales platform services
segment segment Total
%%Pﬁi&& =EEH
REELE BEEHORAES \
HETFADH REREDH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FAT
Segment revenue DEBUTA 399,736 26,513 426,249
Segment results DEBEELE (45,554) 500 (45,054)
Unallocated otherincome  RH R E MU A R
and gains 45
Unallocated expenses AAFLz B (62,1006)
Loss from operations 2ERR (107,115)
Finance costs B (7.230)
Loss before tax R AIEE (114,345)
Income tax credit, net FriS i g e 1,430
Loss for the year REERE (112,915)
Segment assets DEEE 155,798 - 155,798
Unallocated assets ROBL 2 BE 79,019
Total assets mEE 234,817
Segment liabilities pan-i =N 91,812 - 91,812
Unallocated liabilities KOz EE 10,986
Total liabilities BweE 102,798
Capital expenditure BARFEZ 2,112 99 2,211
Unallocated capital ROz BARFX
expenditure -
2,211
Depreciation and PrEe R
amortisation 1,787 159 1,946
Unallocated depreciation RO H 2 & K #
and amortisation -

1,946
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

4, RBEFEEF »

o E R

@

IRESNEES Z LA

The revenue information is based on the location of TEABRHEER MR S5
the customers:
Year ended 30 June 2017 —E—tHFXRA=THEE
North South
America America* Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
LEH aEN ] il [£y1 KEN aff
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tn Tn Tin Thn Tn Tn
Segment revenue: PHRA:
Continuing operations: REEEEE
Ecommerce ond provison  EFEHREL
of on-ine sales platform ELiETs 32,851 57,692 3,528 168,920 43,226 10,077 316,294
Money-ending business 1‘5‘5%% ® ° > = 2973 ° 2973
Provision of property REMEEERD
monagement and property  £RBHR#%
agency services = = = = 3,887 = 3,887
Disconfinued operafion: RIS -
Professional [T confractand ~ ZEZ:REAY
mainfenance services R B = = = = = - =
32,851 57,692 3,528 168,920 50,086 10,077 323,154
Year ended 30 June 2016 T RNFAAZTRAFE
North South
America America* Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
IEN EEY Eal il Tl REN &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn T T Thn T T
Segment revenue: YA :
Confining operation: RETEEE:
Ecommerceond provison  EFEHREL
of on-ine sales platform BHEeTs 41,242 51,556 3,488 262,986 36,136 14,328 399,736
Discontinued operafion: SHEEXTs -
Professional Tcontractand—— EEEREAY
mainfenance services REBRH - - - - 26,513 - 2%513
41,242 51,556 3,488 262,986 62,649 14,328 426,249
* For the year ended 30 June 2017, there was = BHE-_ZT—tH&A=1THIEE -

approximately HK$48,967,000 sales to Brazil which
accounted for more than 10% of total revenue (2016:
No country with sales more than 10% of total revenue).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFHEH =

(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) EER (%)
(b) Segment assets (b)) FEEE
Year ended 30 June 2017 “E—tHFXRA=ZTHEE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
EM EEY M B [yl KEM &b
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T Thr Thn TEn TEn T
Segment assets AHEE - - - - 326,244 - 326,244
Capifal expenditure EAEY - - - - 848 - 848
Year ended 30 June 2016 ZE—RFAA=TRFE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
JEM EE Eal el Tl AN aff
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T Thr TEn TER TEn T
Segment assets PHEE - - - - 234,817 - 234,817
Copital expenditure BERX - - - - 2211 - 2211
Information about a major customer BERAEFZER
There was no sales either from continuing operations and HEZ &R —X"FA=1THILF
discontinued operation to any single external customer B B E RIS R A R TS B —
that contributed over 10% of the Group's total revenue for INVRBEFEL 2 HEBMBAASEEBKA
the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016. 10%
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ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents (i) the transaction price arising from
e-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform; (ii)
interest income arising from money-lending business;
(iii) service income arising from the provision of property
management and property agency services; and (iv) the
net invoiced value of provision of professional IT confract
and maintenance services.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and
gains is as follows:

WA - Bk AR U zs

WATE()IEE T A5 RIBH S LIHEF A

)Q

%FE (iNE SR PIELNMEWA (|||)

YT I8 W) R IR ARG H) RIS

(wQETE{,\%%éuﬂﬂ& " I N%%HE?F‘Z

HEFE

REEZ WA ~ ERA RS SITIT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue: A -
Continuing operations: FEICE TS
E-commerce and provision of on-line BB REHELEETS
sales platform 316,294 399,736
Interest income arising from EEEBEENF EHA
money-lending business 2,973 -
Provision of property management R EERE R ERIERS
and property agency services 3,887 -
323,154 399,736
Discontfinued operation: RIS T
Provision of professional IT contract REFZEARRAOR
and maintenance services (note 11) B ERERS (M) - 26,513
323,154 426,249
Other income and gains: EHUA R W
Bank interest income SRITHBMA ) 157 86
Dividend income from equity BRATEHABRZRERE
investments at fair FBRR B A
value through profit or loss ! 12 7
Gain on disposal of a domain name & 18 i A y 2,028 -
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  HEYE - BE MR T
equipment 83 -
Government grants received 2R T EBS 368 416
PRC VAT refunded B ETRE = 2,398
Ancillary service income ERN ARSI 791 833
Reversal of long service BERERESBE
payment provision 494 348
Rental income HaA 62 504
Others Hth 453 228
4,448 4,820
Total revenue, other income and gains YA ~ EAbUA R iz 327,602 431,069
Revenue: Hﬁl
Atfributable to continuing operations nA TEﬁﬁi’%Pﬁf%ﬁﬁE’]T
reported in the consolidated I TS
statement of profit or loss 323,154 399,736
Attributable to discontinued RESISCI—E Y
operation (note 11) (BEET 1) - 26,513
323,154 426,249
Other income and gains: Emﬂﬁzi\&ﬂﬁz :
Attributable to continuing operations AERKFEROE
reported in the consolidated Z<<<M¥1W)Ef£
statement of profit or loss 4,448 4,508
Attributable to discontinued Bl SE Sy
operation (note 11) (B=E 1) - 312
4,448 4,820
327,602 431,069
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 &E—=%

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

pY QRN Sl ¥ — |
LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BR¥AEBE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REB 2 BHBEEINRIE (GTA) TH&
(crediting): TRIEFTHE
2017 2016
—E2—tf T RE
HK$'000 HKS'000
FTER FAEL
Cost of sales and services BEmifE RIRBHAR
Cost of sales ﬁ"%ﬁ&$ -
Continuing operations REEEXT
- E-commerce and provision of on-ine - BEFABRREHELHEE
sales platform 8 215,598 253,031
Discontinued operation w7
- Provision of Professional IT contract —RESEEANES = 21,041
Cost of services BRI A 7R
Continuing operations FHEEEET
- Property management and property *%%”"E&%%ﬁ@ﬂ&ﬁ%
agency services A -
Discontinued operation (note 11) R IR
- Mainfenance services — 4z 1%%%&7?% - 358
216,369 274,430
Technical expenses included in BEEREBRRL -
"Cost of sales” in the consolidated [ ERIEEMA N 2 HiirE A
statement of profit or loss
Continuing operations ot 7,402 11,338
Discontinued operation RIHEEETS - 16,874
7,402 28,212
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERRETE
equipment
Continuing operations (note 14) 1.127 1,787
Discontinued operation - 159
1,127 1,946
Minimum lease payments under operating *E?J*iﬂﬂ&%ntzﬂ“ Rtk
leases in respect of land and building Z =BT R ‘ 2,938 5,267
Write off of property, plant and equipment  #35%12 « BifE & 54 (H514)
(note 14) ) ) = 34
Fair value loss on equity investments BLOTERABR
at fair value through profit or loss ZIREHENTEEER 9,487 6,226
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) 1 & HTE A A& E (F17£33) - 1,932
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales HEAREERARSE  F8E
investments, net 384 2,029
Auditor's remuneration ZER e 757 640
Impairment loss of other infangible Hitmp A EREBE(E16)
assets (note 16) 1,715 -
Impairment loss of an available- AL ERERERE"
for-sales investment* 88 27,570
Staff costs (including directors’ BIAA (B EMESRTL:
remuneration in note 8) B=02)
Wages and salaries TERG® 20,658 27,892
Equity-settled share option expenses IRA S IR RER 710 6,021
Net pension scheme contributions* * RS HAFE* 1,196 3,576
22,564 37,489
Foreign exchange loss, net SN 1R R 2,057 2,260
Bank interest income RITFSBA (157) (86)
Dividend income from equity investments 17/ (& H\TEﬁnZﬂx—rT &
at fair value through profit or loss PSR S I (1 2; @
Gain on disposal of a domain name uﬂ’%i%%/mf‘J (2,028 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BB REHE 25T
and equipment \ (83; -
Government grants received ERBEED (368 416
PRC VAT refunded PR AR = (2,398
Rental income RN 62; 504
Reversal of long service payment provision % [Bl& HiR75& E (494 348
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/T\

BB HmRM T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued)

* %

Consistent with previous years, the fair value loss of GET
Holdings Limited ("GET Holdings”) shares recognised
during the year was reclassified from the available-for-sales
investment revaluation reserve to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as the directors of the Company were at the
opinion that the investment was determined to be impaired.
During the year, the Group disposed all GET Holdings’ shares
and recognised a gain of approximately HK$669,000 (2016:
loss of approximately HK$2,029,000). No GET Holdings share
was held by the Group as at 30 June 2017.

At 30 June 2017, the Group did not have forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2016: Nil).

7. FINANCE COSTS

Bﬁﬂau B8 =)

* %

HEF-H FARBNEZEBRERA
A ([ % %’ﬁlﬂxJ)fo’\’“iF@JESTEEEEéﬁE
FRENIREGGEEE RERAR
RAEERAZRECEEARE - RAF
Z - ZK%H?%%%B%’%E%% 5 - WHER
W E49669.0008 T (= F—RF : BELY
2,029,000/ 7L) c R=ZFE—tF A=+
B AEEWERSEE SRR o

RZZB—tFRA=THAKREWRAR R
WERASFEZHF(ZF—RF ) -

A& A

2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest expenses on bank borrowing  $R1THERFIE RS2 221 383
Interest expenses on other borrowing  E b &7 FI S5 52 128 -
Interest expenses on note payables EREEF SRS - 6,847
349 7,230
Finance costs: BRERKAR
Attributable fo continuing GRIBREAMEMNSE
operations reported in the KB TSR
consolidated statement
of profit or loss 349 7.084
Attributable to discontinued operation B4 IHE L ¥EFSENL
(note 11) (B3E11) - 146
349 7,230
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, Sections 383(1)(a).
®). (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

8. EEREMITHASHME

RAEE @ BRIEEMRUREBDEEHE
383(1)(a), (b). (c) & () 5 —EBtr (FHEE
EERMEMBENESRETRASNH
BN -

2017 2016

—E—tHF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$"000

FExT FHET

Fees we 151 163

Other emoluments: Eae

Salaries, allowances and EXEe - Ht2RREYFIR

benéefits in kind 886 3,974

Equity-settled share option expenses & 45 & B ISR 2 71 1,505

Pension scheme confributions RIS ETEIHER 16 40

973 5,519

1,124 5,682

During the years, certain directors were granted share
options in respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such opfions, which has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the consolidated
financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

NEFEAN  HETESEARABRESZ
T RIBHESASE 2 RGER T REAE - &
—HHBER R M RAM TS - £EREH
NERGFARBRRERZZSTEREZAFE
WA HEE - MESRAFELESBBR
RZBBAFNALEEZHSWEILDA -
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR WIEERR M

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENBRITHAEME =
REMUNERATION (continued)

(0) Executive directors (o) BITES
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses  contributions  remuneration
E2ic
Hi2ER B Bke
ne BEMHE RRERX BE 2 aMe
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FHT it TiEx T Fitr
2017 “E-t%
Mr.POON Man Sam B34 (@) - 131 - - 131
Mr. Al Kuiyu NEFEE ©] - 62 - 2 64
Mr. TAIMan Hin Tony ~ &35 4 (© - 86 7 4 161
Mr. HUANG Shaokang  ERESEAE (d) - - - - -
Mr. CHOW Siu kwong Kk 54 (d) - 459 - 4 463
Mr. HUNG Kenneth  HEHEAE (e) - 120 - 6 126
- 858 n 16 945
2016 —TRF
Mr. HUANG Shaokang  E4 %4 d - 728 - 18 746
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong IR EAE d - 3,158 752 18 3,928
Mr. HUNG Kenneth HEFLLE (e - 88 753 4 845
- 3,974 1,506 40 5519
Noftes: B
(a)  appointed on 18 May 2017 (@ RZE—tFRA+N\BEZE
(b)  appointed on 27 March 2017 (b) RZZE—tF=A=+tHEZE
(c) appointed on 13 September 2016 and resigned on 1 ©) RZZE—FR"EFNA+T=BEZELR
June 2017 T tFRA—AEE
(d) resigned on 23 September 2016 d) RZZ—"FAAZT+=HFT
(e) re-designated as “Executive director” from () MIE-—RF+ALBHBILIFANT
“Independent non-executive director® on 7 October EEHEERTES

2015
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

®)

©

Non-executive directors

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

8. EERBRITBAEME =

(b) FEHITES

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Fi5E FEx FAT
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson SRR E (a) 28 -
Mr. MENG Hu @ E ) - -
28 -
Notes: B 5E

(a) appointed on 5 May 2017

(b) resigned on 19 December 2016

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

() R-T—tERARAEZET
) RZZFE—R"FT-A+hB#E

(c) BYFHITES
BN TEEZAFEMSIT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

k=2 TET FET

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai HEEEE 50 50
Mr. ZHU Zhi KESLE (@) 11 50
Mr. LIN Xiaofeng PRI S A& (b) 8 50
Mr. HUNG Kenneth EBRTE (©) = 13
Mr. ZHOU Jing Sl=p e (e)) 40 -
Dr. FUNG Kam Man IR B ©) 42 -
151 163
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AR WIEERR M

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(¢) Independent non-executive directors
(Continued)
Notes:

(a) resigned on 23 September 2016
(b) resigned on 1 August 2016

(¢) re-designated as “Executive director” from
‘Independent non-executive director” on 7 October
2015

(d) appointed on 13 September 2016 and resigned
subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 10
August 2017

(e) appointed on T August 2016

There was no other emolument payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2016: Nil).

No further emolument was paid by the Group to
the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or to join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016:
Nil).

The number of directors, whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

8. EERBRITBAEME =

(c) BAFHITES (&)

HEE

(@ RZZE—R"EAAZ+=B%MT

(b) R-B—AENA—BEHE

(©) RIZZT—RFTA+BAEBILIENT
EERACENTES

(@) R-B—AEAAT=AEELIR
WL MR L =T E A+ AR

() R-B—AENA—BEEL

FRW BT EA BB IEMITES
ZHe(ZF—REF : &) -

AEEMERALENTES SFRTEENE
SOEITERXMEAEMME - AEREN
AR DA S B B 2 28 3 1F 7 BE B 2 B

{8 e

FRAEERERNLHFEEERELRBNE
EAME(ZF—RF - &) -

HEeNTFTISEENZEEAZNAT

Number of Directors

EEAN
2017 2016
—e—t= —EAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,000/& T 13 6
HKS$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7t 2 2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017%7523,000,000/% 7T - 1
13 7
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
an ex-director, Mr. Chow Siu Kwong (*Mr. Chow") (2016: 3
directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Mr. Chow resigned as a director on 23 September
2016. Apart from the director’s remuneration of HK$463,000
during the period from 1 July 2016 to 23 September 2016,
the Group paid staff salary in the amount of HK$1,786,000
fo him after his resignation as a director of the Company.
During the year ended 30 June 2017, the aggregate of his
director’s remuneration and staff salary constituted one of
the 5 highest paid employees with an aggregate amount
of HK$2,249,000 and fell within the band of HK$2,000,001
to HK$2,500,000. Details of the remuneration of Mr. Chow
and the remaining 4 (2016: 2) non-directors, highest paid
employees are as follows:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

TERESHET
FARERSFHEERENETEERILEE
(TAREDN(ZE—RF : 3BEE)  KEZ
& B EMN EXXHiEE8 » AR ERZZ—K
FNRZT=BBEEE -RTR=ZZT—RF
tA—HAE-"T-R"EFAA-T=BHHZ
EEH$463,0008 I © REERKEEAR
NAEFEBEENETHS1,786,000%
T BEZE—tHFRA=THILEE  HE
EHN N B T3 & 4 582,249,0008 LK R
HE=FHMEE 2 — /1 F2,000,001ETE
2,500,000/ 7T ° FALE R 4B (ZF—R
F2R)FEFRSFMEE ZMEFHEL
T

Group

REEH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HKS$'000
FH&xT FET

Salaries, allowances and e AR REYN =

benéefits in kind 4,978 2,029
Equity-settled share option expenses &7 4 & B &R 2 - 564
Pension scheme contributions RINGRTEIERK 90 36
5,068 2,629

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
(including Mr. Chow) whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

BN T FREN BEHIEES (D A
St ) EE 2 ME RN TX

Number of employees

EEAH
2017 2016
—e—+% A
Nil fo HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 71,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 72,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7££2,500,000/8 7T 1 1
5 2
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FRISHER

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BANGRIBEEZ T —tFA=1H
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong BB BEE 2 T ERTR M1R16.5%
Kong during the year ended 30 June 2017. No Hong ZRREHREE c BE T —F A A=1H
Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did not WEFE  AEBWEERBEEEETAER
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong Fomfl - BRBREBFETHEL B -
during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Taxes on profits in respect of Group's companies operating K%E@ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ[i‘“éz Al BFBIE B
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax RRFTfE 2 RAED - RERES - =S8
prevailing in the respective tax countries/jurisdictions ﬁi“%%/ﬂii%lﬁziﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁ ®

in which they operate based on existing legislation,
inferpretations and practices in respect thereof.

2017 2016
—ZE—t5F ZE—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current tax - Hong Kong BIERTL S — &8
Charge for the year RELRX 151 -
Current tax - Elsewhere BNEAT 7% — Hofth i [2
Charge for the year REERX 31 365
Over-provision in previous year W F R - (143)
Total tax charged for the year REEMIBLZ N4 182 222
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before 33 FA A FR 5 4B A B T AT S 18 AR A 8] 2 ELFft
fax from continuing operations using the statutory rate for BATIFaMBAR 2 EERMERAE 2 HIBERS
the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries BFERNERMRAEE WD ¢
are domiciled to the tax expenses at the effective tax rate is
as follows:
2017 2016
“B—tF —ERE
HK$'000 HK$000
TEx % FET %
Loss before fax from SEICLER
continuing operations BRIATEE (50.808) (114,699)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax rates  %ZE B Rt EMFHIE (8.383) 16.5 (18,925) 165
Effect of different taxation BIMRE RS TR
rate in overseas 1 (0.1) 150 ©.1)
Income not subject fo fax RHBA (1.205) 2.3 (86) 0.1
Expenses not deductible for tax A2 A% 3,005 (5.9 6,836 (6.0)
Unrecognised deferred tax assefs AERBELFIRE E 6,724 (13.2) 12,390 (10.8)
Over-provision in previous year BEFERERE - - (143) 0.1
Tax charge at effective fax rate REBH% 182 0.4) 222 (0.2)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Group completed the disposal of its professional IT
confract and maintenance services business during the
year ended 30 June 2016.

On 21 April 2015, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the "Agreement”) with China Mobile
Games And Cultural Investment Limited (currently known
as Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited (“IE China”), a company of which, Mr.
Hung Kenneth, an executive director of I[E China, was an
independent non-executive director of the Company as
at that date. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company
disposed of its 100% equity inferest in EPRO (BVI) Limited
and its subsidiaries (except for EPRO Systems Limited) (the
“EPRO BVI Group”) at a final consideration of HK$60,264,000
(the "EPRO BVI Disposal”).

The EPRO BVI Disposal had been completed on 31 August
2015.

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

11.

RIEREXE
RoB—AFAA=TRILFE - AEERK
HEXEEEARRA ORBERERE %
7 o

MNEZE—AFMNA - +—HARBEPETFE
e EBR AR R B RF B SRR
BERAB([ERFTE]) CABERTERZA
RS RERPENATEERARRNEL
FERTER)FI LM EEHHE( ZiHHED -
RIEZ W% - AR H & EREPRO (BVI)
Limited R &R B L E (BT 5B RZHR R
A)) ([EPRO BVIEHE |) 2 100% B At » &
f& #B1X 8 760,264,0007% 7T ([ H S EPRO BVI
=HE])

ZHEEPROBVIEER T —HFN\A
=t+—H%mK

2017 s8R | DX.comiZARER A A



Year ended 30 June 2017 &E=%

BB HmRM T

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The resulfs of the discontinued operation included in the

No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

11. BIEREER »

ST ARG R BRI S R RR 5 10

profit for the year are set out below: i
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks TExT FHET
Revenue WA 5 - 26,513
Cost of sales B iniH &R 6 - (21,399)
Gross profit E75 - 5114
Other income and gains L N6 5 312
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A AN - (70
Administrative expenses THRERA - (4,856)
Finance costs BA AN 7 (146)
Profit before tax B A BT & A - 354
Income tax credit FRiGTiREm - 1,652
Profit for the year from IHE R E R AR FE BT
discontinued operation = 2,006
Profit/ (loss) aftributable to: VAT IE R FE(ERF], (E51R)
Owners of the Company PIN/NCIEZZ SN - 2,089
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR MRS = (83)
- 2,006
The net cash flow incurred by EPRO BVISSEFTEARIRE R
the EPRO BVI Group are as SRERLNR:
follows:
Operating activities LB TEE 3,367
Investing activities }xéf/ﬁib 110
Financing activities BMEED - (128)
Net cash inflow REMAFHE - 3,349
Eamnings per share: BRREF
Basic, from the discontinued EARCRB LIS 2 E55) 13
operation - 0.30 centsi#il
Diluted, from the discontinued — #58 (R B R IH G & 25%)
operation - 0.30 centsifll
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and dilufed loss per share are

Year ended 30 June 2017 &E—=%

iR WIEERR ML

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

12. g2
EEETERREHE-ZT
IEEARB(ZZ—RF - &) ©

13. AR EERERSE ARG
2 BREE

—tFRA=+H

BRERNBELBINZZFEAR T ERBER
BB ARIGZFEER  URFRBETE
AL IR RETE -

BREARBEERRATEENE

based on:
2017 2016
—E—+tF T—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHET FET
Loss attributable to ordinary equity 1’&%%?@&%@%?5 K ERBR AN
holders of the Company, used AR BRI R E(E SR
in the basic loss per share
calculations (50,892) (112,832)
Aftributable fo: AT & 275 Al -
Continuing operations FRLBRT (50.892) (114,921)
Discontinued operation B E TS - 2,089
(50,892) (112,832)
Numbers of shares
RHEE
2017 2016
—E & —T—RF
Shares A& 19
Weighted average number of A Mﬁ'ﬁlﬂﬁﬁ$ﬁ§ﬂ52¢lﬂﬁﬁf
ordinary shares in issue during TERRMNETS
the year used in the basic loss per
share calculation 2,108,900,514 691,961,572
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share HE_T—"FER-_T—tFA=THIF

amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2016 and
2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented.

As detailed in note 38(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, upon the issuance of the zero coupon
redeemable convertible bonds subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the number of potential ordinary
shares would have been changed significantly if those
fransactions had occurred before the end of the reporting
period.

Z I[ﬁEﬁ%fﬁiﬁ']#&ﬁ@lﬂx%ﬂigﬂﬁﬁgﬁf’ﬁ
HBE - REREARTRE ZBEREYSIHRNE
BRERNEESEEL T RESEWE -

M AnsR A B R M 38 (o) PR - RS

HIRRBTEERUELD AR ESE - WX

E“%E’\#&iﬁﬁiﬁﬂ\ #1T  ABEEEBEREE
B IR AR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR WIEERR M

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERRE

Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment and software vehicles Total
HELE RERRE &4 AE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FER TET TER FER TER
30 June 2017 —Z—tFXA=1H
At 1 July 2016: —E-"FtA-H:
Cost B%NE 3,395 1,831 2,567 643 8,436
Accumulated ZEE
depreciation (2.850) (1.651) (2.154) (497) (7.152)
Net carrying amount REFE 545 180 413 146 1,284
At 1 July 2016, net of —Z-"FtA-H-
accumulated BB EITE
depreciation 545 180 413 146 1,284
Additions AE 377 146 135 - 658
Acaquisition of a subsidiary  YEEH B2 A (Fi532(b))
(note 32(b)) = 190 - £ 190
Depreciation provided ERFTERE
during the year (481) (212) (309) (125) a.,127)
Disposal during the year ~ RAERE & = (03] - - )
Exchanges realignment  ER#EE 7) ) (8) 3) (20)
At 30 June 2017, net of ZEtERAZTE
accumulated Bk REHE
depreciation 434 300 231 18 983
At 30 June 2017: ZE—tFRA=TH:
Cost RAE 3,728 1,554 2,562 633 8,477
Accumulated 2itiE
depreciation (3.294) (1,254) (2.331) (615) (7.494)
Net carrying amount BEFE 434 300 231 18 983
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BENRRME @)
(Continued)
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold  fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment  and software vehicles Total
A T E
HEEE RERZE Rt HE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET THET FiEr
30 June 2016 “E-RERAZTH
At 1 July 2015: “T-AFtA-H:
Cost RAE 3,575 2,012 2,561 686 8,834
Accumulated RitiE
depreciation (2,325) (1,656) (1,650) (393) (6,024)
Net carrying amount FRmFE 1,250 356 9n 293 2,810
At 1 July 2015, “E-AFtA—-H-
net of accumulated Bk REE
depreciation 1,250 356 9N 293 2,810
Additions NE 189 50 158 - 397
Depreciation provided ERTERE
during the year (835) (207) (613) (132) (1.787)
Write off s (16) ©) ©) - (34)
Exchanges realignment  JEXFHE (43) (10) (34) (15) (102)
At 30 June 2016, ZE-"ERA=TH"
net of accumulated BB ZEHTE
depreciation 545 180 413 146 1,284
At 30 June 2016: —E-R"ERA=TH:
Cost RAE 3,395 1,831 2,567 643 8,436
Accumulated ZitiE
depreciation (2,850) (1,651) (2,154) 497 (7.152)
Net carrying amount FREFE 545 180 43 146 1,284
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL 15. &
HK$’'000
FEx
Cost at 1 July 2015, net of RZE—RFEA—BKA -

accumulated impairment E 0Bk 25HRE -
Impairment during the year RAREERE -
Cost at 30 June 2016, net of RZZ—RNFEANA=ZTFRZERA -

accumulated impairment 2R Z25HRIE -
At 30 June 2016 RZE—R"FAAA=+AH

Cost BRAR 10,436

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (10,436)

Net carrying amount fRmEFE -
Cost at 1 July 2016, net of RZZE—RNFEA—BA

accumulated impairment BBk 25HRE -
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR B A /(M EE32(a) k(b))

(note 32(a)&(b)) 17,409
Impairment during the year RAREERE -
Cost at 30 June 2017, net of RZT—EFNA=Z+AZEA -

accumulated impairment B0k REHRE 17,409
At 30 June 2017 RZT—tFA=+A

Cost BN 27,845

Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (10.436)

Net carrying amount IREFAE 17,409
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e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL (continued) 15. &€ @

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the Group’s cash generating units ("CGUs")
that are expected to benefit from that business. The
net carrying amount of goodwill represented HKSO
(after deducting the impairment of HK$10,436,000),
HK$16,409,000 and HK$1,000,000, respectively, arised from
acquisition of subsidiaries in (i) provision of on-line sales
platform; (i) property management and property agency
services CGU; and (iii) money-lending business CGU
respectively.

On-line sales platform of CGU

The goodwill of the on-line sales platform in the amount of
HK$10,436,000 had been fully impaired in previous year.

Provision of property management and
property agency services CGU and money-
lending business CGU

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined on the basis of their value in use (“VIU") using
discounted cash flow method.

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on the
most recent financial budgets approved by the senior
management of the Group for the next five years from 2018
to 2022 (the "Budget Period”) with the residual period.

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method
are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate, terminal
growth rate, gross margin and turnover during the Budget
Period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
terminal growth rate is based on historical growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs
operate. These rates do not exceed the average long-term
growth rates for the relevant markets. Budgeted revenue
(i.e. average commission income of 1% on each property
fransaction and the loan interest income for the range from
8% to 11% on loan portfolio, respectively) and expenses are
based on historical performance of the CGUs projected
with growth rate not exceed the inflation rate.

RTE R E Al
EBavtmESzEEeankBR S =T
BRANZEBZAECBREELEM([]R
SEABMG])  BHEZREEEORESL
HEFE  (NWXREERMEREREES
EEEN  R(NEEEBREEESEL TN
BHNBAREEZEED R ATET(KNK
10,436,000/ 7T 2 A 1E1&) ~ 16,409,000/ 7T
11,000,000/ 7T °

REELBEMNA LEETFE
B EHET A2 H810,436,0008TERN E—
FRERYOHE -

REMEEERNERERBESE
EERENUREEERBREELEN

ReEfBEMsrlE e RAMRESR
EXREBEEEREE(ERERDERE -

BRenEBANERNEERR#E—T—/\F
=T F([FHEH ] ARRAE R RIS
Z BRI BIREEDL -

HRRERBZNTIERREBEHALLR
EHEER . REERE  ENXRKAR
B - ANEERA R IR B A58 B RE
BTG RIR S E A AR E R A B AT
AMBEHTER R o Rumtg R R TIAR S E L F
RREXEAEENE R IZR R AEE - 2%
BRRI A BERET SN FIORERE -
B (AEMERZH 2 1% FHARERAR
ERER Z8RENT%EHFBWA) KFZT)
ENREELBUZBERBAETE @ BitEk
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL (continued)
Provision of property management and
property agency services CGU and money-
lending business CGU (Continued)

Apart from the above, key assumptions used are

summarised as follows:

15. B& &)

RENEEERNERERBEEE
SERMREEEBREELEN @)

Average growth

B bt -

Terminal growth

FrAE2/REMRIT

rate in the rate beyond the
budget period budget period Discount rate
CGUs EEBRN EHEBEN (pre-tax)
REeELEN FIgERE HIRBRE PR Z(BiAr)
Provision of property management and property 3% 3.11% 14.56%
agency services CGU (2016: N/A) (2016: N/A) (2016: N/A)
REMEETERYERBERBRS (Z2—R%F: (ZZF—RF: (ZB—RF:
EAEEM TEA) TEA) TEA)
Money-lending business CGU 3% 3.11% 19.82%
EEEBRSEEEN (2016: N/A) (2016: N/A) (2016: N/A)
(ZF—R%F: (ZZ—R%F: (ZZ—R%F:
TEA) TEA) TEA)
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HihBREE
On-line sales
platforms
MFHEF A
HK$’000
FHERT
At 1 July 2015 RZZE—RF+A—H

Cost BRAR 23,160

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (19.,260)

Net carrying value R HE 3,900
At 1 July 2015, net of RZZT—RF+A—H

accumulated impairment 2 0Bk 25HRE 3,900
Acquisition of a subsidiary g B A R (3E32(c))

(note 32(c)) 1.715
Impairment during the year RAREERE -
At 30 June 2016, net of accumulated R=-Z—XFA=+H"

impairment B0 2EHRE 5,615
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 RZZE—R"FAA=-THRE

—E-RFtHA—H

Cost BN 24,875

Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (19.260)

Net carrying value AR HE 5,615
Af 1 July 2016, net of RZE—R"FtHA—R"

accumulated impairment 2 BR 25HRE 5,615
Impairment during the year RAFERE (1.715)
At 30 June 2017, net of accumulated R=Z—tF/xA=+H"

impairment B0k REHRE 3,900
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—+tFAA=1H

Cost [B#N 24,875

Accumulated impairment REHRE (20,975)

Net carrying value BREFHE 3,900
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The cost of other infangible assets represents three on-
line sales platforms for trading of merchandises through
internet acquired by the Group during the years ended 30
June 2016 and 2012 respectively.

Platform 1

The Group made a full impairment of HK$19,260,000 on
the carrying amount of one of its on-line sales platforms
relevant to a subsidiary to facilitate the frading of
merchandises between sellers and buyers through the
infernet platform in previous year, which had been closed
down in previous year.

Platform 2

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group closed
down one of its on-line sales platforms relevant to a
subsidiary to facilitate the trading of luxury goods through
internet platform due to (i) the unsatisfactory performance
of the luxury goods platform; and (ii) keen competition
in the e-commerce business. As a result of the closure
of the luxury goods platform, the Group provided a full
impairment of HK$1,715,000 on the carrying amount of the
luxury goods platform.

Platform 3

The recoverable amount of the remaining on-line sales
platform relevant to business of e-commerce segment
has been assessed by Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited, an independent valuer, as at 30 June 2017 and
2016. No impairment has been provided as the recoverable
amount of such on-line sales platform is higher than its
carrying amount as at 30 June 2016 and 2017.

The fair value measurement is using Level 2 inputs which
are not using significant unobservable inputs and there
is no change in the fair value hierarchy as compared to
previous year.
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16.

17.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Platform 3 (Continued)

The key assumptions for the relief-from-royalty method are
those regarding the discount rate, growth rate, royalty rate
and budgeted turnover during the budget period. The
Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the e-commerce segment. The
growth rate used in the budget do not exceed the long-
term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the e-commerce segment
operate. The royalty rate is based on market information
specific fo the e-commerce segment. Budgeted gross
margin and furnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
is 19.82% (2016: 21.25%), the royalty rate applied to the
royalty savings from owing the platform was 4.7% (2016:
5%) based on furnover, and cash flow beyond the five
years period is extrapolated using a zero growth rate
(2016: 3.65%). No impairment of the on-line sales platforms

Year ended 30 June 2017 &E—=%

16.

iR WIEERR ML

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

HitEBREE =)
EH83 #®)
S MEFIEE SRy T EBREEE N I
BE . EEE  SFEEREERALH o &
5 B R IR 1745 50 2 S MBS P
BIEIEH BEERRY BTG TR
% o BE B BRI E R T RAETES
“%%FW%%EWEEHZ¥W%@?§
 EHBEDREFEES B2 BE e
ﬂ H o T IR R A T B R R
ISR Y A -

BeRBAMKRAZAMRER19.82%(=F
— R 21.25%) - MRARE - BERZET
AEENENEMRAZENERRLTH(=
T—RF : 5%) AFHRZASRTIIRTIE
REHE(ZZ—/]F : 3.65%) - B EFIER
MRIHE T B 2 BER RS J?Iﬁ'ﬁ%iﬁ@

relevant have been provided as the recoverable amount of HBHEF ez KRB CESRER=_T—+F
the on-line sales platform is higher than its carrying amount MZT—RNFEANA=THZERME -
as at 30 June 2017 and 2016.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES INVESTMENTS 17. At HERE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Listed investments, BATEFEN ETRE
at fair value
Equity securities listed in RBEBLETHRAFES
Hong Kong 29,700 56,151

The fair values of the available-for-sales investments were
determined based on the quoted market prices. During
the year, the decrease in the fair value of available-for-
sales investments recognised in other comprehensive
income amounted to approximately HK$979,000 (2016:
approximately HK$21,379,000), of which approximately
HK$88,000 (2016: approximately HK$27,570,000) was
determined to be impaired, and therefore, it was
reclassified from the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income fo the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year.

HEERE 2 A FENRTSREET ° F
R E A 2 H W R HERR 2 At H B IR A
E?J\Z RFER A 4) /979,000 L (ZF —7K
F : 4921,379.000/87T) - HH4988,0007% 7T
(ZZ—7"F : £)27,570,000% 70) E EEE AR
TE HENAFEBGS 2EREREHD

HEGAEERE -
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

18. BIRERKFI 2R

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

R-B—tF RZZE—RF

RAA=TH ~NAZ=Z18

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHT

Loan receivables FEUE SRR TR 93,050 -

Interest receivables EH&%‘JEE&M 1,111 -

Impairment BB - -

Net carrying amounts BREVFAE 94,161 -

Less: Current portion of loan and B ERER R SRR

interest receivables mENE S (74.161) -
Non-current portion of loan and FENE R R B AR FEREN B

interest receivables 20,000 -

During the year, the Group extended its business info the
operation of money-lending business. Loan and interest
receivables represent outstanding principal and interest
arising from the money-lending business of the Group. All of
the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 6 months to 24 months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its loan and interest receivables in order
to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ financial
positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually
agreed between the contfracting parties, ranging from 8%
to 12% per annum. As at 30 June 2017, all loan receivables
of the Group were unsecured.
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18.

19.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The loan and interest receivables at the end of the
reporting period are analysed by the remaining period to
confractual maturity dafe as follows:

18.

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

BRERRF RERR @

RNREHR - RIS RPABKTHREAEZ
FERE SRR A SRR Z WA T

30 June 30 June
2017 2016
R=-Z—+tF RZZE—RF
AH=t+H NAZ=18
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Receivable: FEMIER
Within 3 months =EAR 2,330 -
3 months to 1 year —EBRAE—% 71,831 -
Over 1 year BiEm—F 20,000 -
94,161 -
Less: Current portion of loan and B ERER R EERRZ
interest receivables mENEB S (74,161) -
Non-current portion of loan and JEWE R R A SRR IEREN L 5
inferest receivables 20,000 -

Loan and inferest receivables were neither past due nor
impaired at the end of the reporting period.

INVENTORIES

At 30 June 2017, the Group’s inventories with carrying
amount of HK$2,807,000 (2016: Nil) represented
merchandises for sales which were stated at the lower of
cost or net realisable value.

19.

RIERR - BUER R S RF B ED IR
AR °

78
R-ZE—LFRNA=1TH AEERHEER
2,807,000/ 8T(—FT—RF: )2 HFERH
Elm  WRAK AR FER EPRES
SRR
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. B E 5 IRFX
2017 2016
—E2—tHF ZE—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEUE F R 4,197 653
Impairment VERIE] - -
4,197 653
The Group’s ferms on credit sales primarily range from 30 to AREE 7 BREEHRE —RAIOKEI80ATE
180 days (2016: 30 to 180 days). —ZT—"F : 30RKE180XK) °
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior RRERE R B EER o BN EilEIE
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact RALEZ EYARSR T ESBE P BB - SO
that the Group's trade receivables relate to diversified EEAEERBER BN - BURERR AT
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit B

risk. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end RMEHR - REZEHHEZ EWE FERHR
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as ZERE AT
follows:
2017 2016
—Z & —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current ENER 2,150 652
31 - 60 days 31 - 60k 2,047 1
61 - 90 days 61 - 90k = -
91 - 180 days 91 - 180K = -
Over 180 days EHBiE180K - -
4,197 653
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BINE 5 R =)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
(neither individually nor collectively) considered to be
impaired is as follows:

I FEAR AR E (T E Bl Sk R BRI E) 2 FE W &
PR BRI DITIAT

2017 2016

—E2—tHF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired g R RRE 2,150 652
Less than 1 month past due AR —EA 2,047 1
1 to 3 months past due mif—==1@A = -
3 to 6 months past due mEf==XAA = -
Over 6 months BB~ E A = -
4,197 653

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

3 458760 H 7 SRR (2 B W 58 5 R s A 4 HA X
R Z D BUE P 2R

BHERREZEKESRERERAEEAFR
s EEAR - REBERR  ANER
BRY|EARE) - MULFERDERSATE
2 - MEEFIR A HER I FEREL R
BB - ANEE BB U F AR A (I
mAEMBREE -
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. FAMAFIE - RERE MBI

RECEIVABLES 15

2017 2016

—T—+tF —Z—X

HK$°000 HK$’000

TET FET

Prepayments SEANE/ O 534 924

Trade deposits Bo5%E 20,835 62,610

Deposits and other receivables e REAMEKK 12,575 12,717

Frozen amounts (note (a)) WORAEFIE (M (a)) 39.156 39,156
Deposits for the acquisition of YiESenset @ 2 2% (ML (b))

the Sense Group (note (b)) 5,000 -

78,100 115,407

Notes: B sE -

(a) As detailed in note 37 to the consolidated financial (@) HWERE T BHIREKNEI7 - 4£25,000,000
statements, the balances of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to 27T (8% 4939,000,0005% 7T ) K 20,0003 7T
approximately HK$39,000,000) and US$20,000 (equivalent (#EZ12156,000%8 7T ) (A 1B RAKIA D 5 5l
to approximately HK$156,000) (collectively the “Frozen H-Z—WFEFNAR_ZT——F+ ARARKE
Amounts”) had been frozen by Silicon Valley Bank and £ A R1T R B E (PayPal) R4t - EEMRR
PayPal, since August 2014 and October 2012, respectively. ZRERBEHREMNERAH BAAERB
The Directors consider that the Frozen Amounts have been HmEA - BRI HMEKEE] -
frozen and were temporarily restrained for the Group’s free
usage and therefore, such balances were classified as “other
receivables”.

(b) As detailed in note 38(b) to the consolidated financial (b) BWERA M BRKRME38(0) ATl - AEE

statements, the Group acquired (i) 100% equity interest in
Sense Media Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Sense Group”); and (ii) the outstanding loan
owing by the Sense Group to the vendor at a consideration
of HK$80,000,000 (subject to adjustments). As at 30 June
2017, a deposit of HK$5,000,000 has been paid by the Group
to the vendor. The acquisition was completed subsequent to
the end of the reporting period on 7 August 2017.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
fo receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=ZT—+FSA=THIEFE

22. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 22.

23.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BOFEFARSZRERE

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
Listed equity investments, LETRERE - HMEHE
at market value 219 5,472

The fair values of the equity investments were determined
based on the quoted market prices. The above equity
investments as at 30 June 2017 and 2016 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

BERE 2 A HETIREMISERERE - B2
R FR-TREXNA=TAL - Bt
BREERDBAFHERE - EGERE -
REBEEERARXFEEBAREZWBE
7o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. HeRALEZEHEEHRDIKMH
PLEDGED DEPOSITS FX
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTAE SR 94,458 30,017
Time deposits TE BT 310 20,218
94,768 50,235
Less: Pledged time deposits B RERRIRIT REMEE
for securing banking AMEmMERZ
and other credit facilities EHFER(FIE27)
(note 27) (310) (20,218)
Cash and cash equivalents e MRSEAEE 94,458 30,017
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Year ended 30 June 2017 &E=%

BB HmRM T

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

24

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$959,000 (2016:
approximately HK$1,182,000) in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible intfo other currencies. However, under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted tfo exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The banking and other credit facilities of the Group
were secured by the Group’s time deposits amounting
to approximately HK$310,000 (2016: approximately
HK$20,218,000) of which, none (2016: approximately
HK$15,050,000) was pledged for the interest-bearing bank
borrowing. As at 30 June 2017, the corporate unlimited
guarantee has been released as the interest-bearing bank
borrowing had been settled during the year.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of tfrade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on payment due date, is as
follows:

23.

24,

HERRELEEEARBIKH
R @

R|ERR - AEERAUARBRENLZ
B & RIRITHE L) 959,000 L (ZF—K
F : #91,182,00087T) - ARBTAUERHRL
BAEAMING - AT - ARIFTBINEE IR G
NAEE BERMTEBEMRAE  ~AEEELR
BEREETINER D ZRITHARELRE
HAbINE -

REEZRITLEMEERE A TIEIE
ERERAEENERFRZE TEROR
310,000 7t (=& — 754 : %920,218,000%
7o) » HARI (= ZF—75F : £915,050,00078
T EERF BIRITERZEM - R-T—+
FRA=1TH BARFABLEFTERITE
A EBREE A RIERE RRR o

BNES
P B S m%iﬁi SRR EI B A
ZEEBATIT -

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHBxT

Current BNHR 8,043 8,067
31 - 60 days 31 - 60K = 2,293
61 - 90 days 61 - 90k = 1,684
91 - 180 days 91 - 180Kk 589 10,362
Over 180 days @180k 11,026 11,890
19,658 34,296
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

25. HittleE A MIEKR Bt E A

2017 2016

—E2—tHF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Other payables H b B 5B 5,185 1,340

Accruals FEEtE R 8,594 10,276
Provision for litigation and legal fee FAAOEEERBE (M)

(note 1) 49,452 43,140

63,231 54,756

Note 1: The Group is a defendant of a litigation in the U.S. in
respect of its e-commerce business through on-line sales
platforms since August 2012. The balance of approximately
HK$49,452,000 (2016: approximately HK$43,140,000)
represented the provision for litigation and legal fee, details
of which are stated in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Ofher payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and
normally seftled within one year.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Normally, a full payment in advance is required from
e-commerce customers (the "e-Customers”) upon
placing orders. As at 30 June 2017, the deposits received
in advance of approximately HK$1,487,000 (2016:
approximately HK$3,746,000) represented deposits
received from the e-Customers for merchandises delivered
by the Group subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.

Mzt . AREE T —FN\ARREE—BFH
BRER EHE T ETETRABRERZF
AZEEN © REHA9,952,0008TT(—F
—7<%F : £943,140,000 7T) Z & #A R AR 72
MoRRERZEBE - EBHnNGamis®
RHIFEST

HibENFBLEAERARE  BEN—F
RS e

26. TEWES
BEFRBzERP([EFEF ) —RAEEEN
EHEEMR - RZE—tFXA=1TAL
ZETFEFIRMMNT,487,0008TT( =T — K
F : #93,746,000870) RTAYEREIZ S - A%
BEREERRBEEEREXGZER °
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

5 n-l-:miE { a‘-)'(

Effective interest rate 2017 2016
BRFZE(%) —E—+tF NS
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAExT

Bank loan - secured 2.2%
RITE A - 10,000
2017 2016
—E—+tF i ANCS
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

Analysed info:
Bank loan repayable

within one year = 10,000

Noftes:

Year ended 30 June 2016

The bank borrowing of the Group was secured by:

@) a corporate unlimited guarantee executed by the Company;

and

(i)  The pledged of the Group's fime deposit amounted to
approximately HK$15,050,000 as at 30 June 2016 (note 23).

Year ended 30 June 2017

The bank borrowing had been settled during the year and the bank
borrowing facility was ceased as at 30 June 2017.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

28. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At 30 June 2017, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2016: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group's subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets

The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax
assets not recognised calculated at deferred tax rates
in Hong Kong and the PRC at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%), and
25% (2016: 25%), respectively, on cumulative tfemporary
differences at the end of the reporting period, are as
follows:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

28. EEHIA

EEBHEAR

R-T—LFXA=+E  AEELERET
DR B BN 2 BB ARE
AWz RERETHERE(ZT—AF :
@) -

EERBEE
BRBENAR R BRER  RETAR
B BB R D BIR16.5%( =B —N4F :
16.5%) K% 25%( —F —7<% : 25%) @ stEAE
BRERECHBAREL EBRIAWT -

2017 2016
—E—LF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiET
Tax losses TisEE
- from continuing operation - FHBIREETS 29,408 22,722
- from discontinued operation - BRIEEER = -
Accelerated depreciation IRITE R
allowances
- from continuing operation - BRI ETS 101 63
- from discontinued operation - BRIEEER = -
29,509 22,785

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
fax losses arising in Hong Kong and PRC of approximately
HK$174,855,000 and HK$2,228,000 (2016: approximately
HK$137,710,000 and Nil), respectively, which were
arising from the continuing operations that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time.

RMERR - NEERES R BIEETEE
184 31 47174,855,000% 7T & 2,228,0005% 7T
(ZT—%F : #137.710,000%E) + R
KEEBES - ATRAREEARRE 2 ER
A o AN ZEEERE BB —ERERE M
BRaE - i ER L ERIEE R IR A T

7

i
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BgA
2017 2016
“E-tf% ZEF
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RH#AE ] bt AE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mis Thn TAL
Authorised : BE !
At beginning of year, ordinary — REET - SREEC.O1EL
shares of HK$0.01 each ZEER 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Share consolidation Trth &5t (a)() - - (9,000,000,000) -
Share sub-division BiHHA (a) i - = 9,000,000,000 -
Atend of year, ordinary shares  #EEL - BREECOTAT
of HK$0.01 each ZEBR 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At beginning of year, ordinary  REE] - SREE001ET
shares of HK$0.01 each Z2EER 1,398,553,424 13,986 5,603,967,127 56,040
Share consolidation Teth &5 (a)() - - (5,043,570,415) -
Capital reduction BRI (@)(i)&(v) - - - (50436)
Share placing: BRERL -
- January 2016 Placing -Z5-E-RRESR (b)(0) - = 112,000,000 1,120
- July 2016 GM Placing ~SERELARERE
£35 ©)00) 295,832,000 2,958 ; -
- October 2016 SM Placing - 2B ETARTERER (o))
E3E 468,750,000 4,688 - -
- April 2017 GM Placing -5t ENA-RIFER by
£55 ®)) = 355,000,000 3,550 - ;
Rights issue of shares AR £ (©) - - 672,396,712 6,724
Exercise of share options freiie (d) 258,080,000 2,580 53,760,000 538
Atend of year, ordinary shares  REEA - BREEC.O1
of HK$0.01 each B LBk 2,776,215,424 27,762 1,398,553,424 13,986




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Conftinued)

(a) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting held on 9 November 2015, the following
steps on capital reorganisation had been taken
place and completed on 10 November 2015:

®

(i)

(iii)

)

every ten shares of nominal value of HK$0.01
each in the issued and unissued share capital
of the Company were consolidated info one
consolidated share of nominal value of HK$0.10
each;

capital reduction whereby the nominal value
of all the issued consolidated shares was
reduced from HKS$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each
by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent
of HK$0.09 on each consolidated share;

share sub-division of each of the authorised but
unissued consolidated shares of HKS0.10 each
info ten shares of HK$0.01 each; and

the credit arising from the capital reduction of
approximately HK$50,436,000 was transferred
fo the confributed surplus account of the
Company.

iR WIEERR ML
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29. IBA )
(@) BEALTBER-E—HEE+—AN
BEAY BREERIAE BB AR
BR . THRAEMASEBOETER -
E-RE+—ATESK :

() ARRBEBETIAREITRAR
TREREEC.01E T2 RinE
BtA—REREECI0EITLLZE
BrRxtn

(i) BBEBHTRASRA HRH
0.09%8TTRAHIR + BB B BT
& GHR 1 2 EfE B SAR0.10B T
HIHEEIR0.01 BT

(i) SREEO.10B T A B
Az ARG FEA+RERE
BO.OVETEZ R : &

V) BRI EFEEZERD

50,436,000/ T VEEAR R A Z
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. BRA )

() (@@ On 6 January 2016, the Company entered () (@ RZZE—XRF—AKE A2 A
info a placing agreement with a placing B ERBITZRE RS @ R
agent. Pursuant to the placing agreement, & ek - ANA R ETR
the Company placed (the “January 2016 5 48 24 112,000,000 f% &= B m &
Placing”) a total of 112,000,000 new shares of 0.01 %87t - IRELEEEMR0.222
HK$0.01 each of the Company to not less than BT E TR R BABLA (1]
six placees who and whose respective ultimate ERBEEZERERHEAASE
beneficial owners are independent third parties HRBIYE=7)([ZF—RF
at a placing price of HK$0.222 per share. —ABREFER])  c —ZT—RF—
The January 2016 Placing was completed AREEER=_Z—~F—A
on 21 January 2016 with net proceeds of Z+—B%K - BE 25 FEE
approximartely HK$23,850,000 for strengthen the #9723,850,0007% 7T A 74 hNa& AR
working capital of the Group. SENEEES -

@iy On 7 July 2016, the Company entered into a @iy MZZE—RFLALH ARH
placing agreement under general mandate R R ERIEFT RS
with a placing agent (the “July 2016 GM e - Bt ARRERESH
Placing”), pursuant to which, the Company 295,832,000k A2 &l & R EE
placed a total of 295,832,000 new shares of 0.01 BT ZBERND T LRI
HK$0.01 each of the Company to not less LEMABERBEE K E R
than six placees who and whose ultimate HEANSBYABYE=7)
beneficial owner are independent third parties ARECE RN IEEC 1B T([=ZF
at the placing price of HK$0.11 per share. The —ANELtA—MREEEE]) o =
July 2016 GM Placing was completed on 26 T-RELtA-RESEERZ
July 2016 with net proceeds of approximately T R"FLAZ+HEHZEKX ' FT
HK$31,215,000 for general working capital, 1SR 5849 531,215,0007% 7T % F
business development and investment RAEEZ —REEED X715
opportunities of the Group. BREMCEREEENRAR -

(i)  On 17 October 2016, the Company entered (i) RZZE—ARETAT+LH AR
info a placing agreement under specific A B E R IB R RI R R L B
mandate with a placing agent (the “October EhE - Bt ARAREERES
2016 SM Placing”), pursuant to which, the $£468,750,000 4% A~ 1 7] B Ak E
Company placed a total of 468,750,000 new B0.01 B T2 #’RMH FRLRIAN
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company to not HLERABERBEE K E RS
less than six placees who and whose ultimate HEANSBYABYE=T)
beneficial owner are independent third parties AR & B 15 EfE0.128 B o ([ =
at the placing price of HK$0.128 per share. T-RE+AFRIEEEEE]) -
The October 2016 SM Placing was completed ZE-RETAKARESEER
on 8 December 2016 with net proceeds of ZT-ARFE+ZANEZEX ' FT
approximately HK$57,455,000 for development 1S RIEFEE X &57,455,0007% 7T
of the money-lending business, general HAREREEER  AEE—
working capital of the Group and funding the BEEES RAZ KB EES
payment of the remaining consideration of the B REMSRE 2% -
acquisition of money-lending business.

@iv) On 6 April 2017, the Company entered into a (iv)y, RZZE—tFHEAKRE  ARA
placing agreement under general mandate H Pl IR AR IR — AR HE AT LB
with a placing agent (the “April 2017 GM EmE Bt - ARAENRE
Placing”), pursuant to which, the Company fROT22B L2 EEEEBRE S H
placed a total of 355,000,000 new shares of 355,000,000 A~ A 8] & IR E (&
HKS$0.01 each of the Company to not less than 001 BT Z2HBMH T ALRA
six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial BEREANBERREZERE
owner are independent third parties at the EHEBEAERBIYE=/)=
placing price of HK$0.122 per share. The April T—tFOAZ —RERERES
2017 GM Placing was completed on 27 April H]) o ZT—tFMAZ—KE
2017 with net proceeds of approximately BEEFHER T —LFMH
HK$41,426,000 for general working capital, Z+EBEK - B RIEFREL
business development and investment 41,426,000/ 0% FA{EA S B —
opportunities of the Group. REEER  EHERRKREARD

1 o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Conftinued)

©

C))

On 18 May 2016, the Company completed a rights
issue (the "Rights Issue”) by issuing 672,396,712 rights
shares on the basis of one rights share for every one
share held by the qualifying shareholders on the
record date atf the subscription price of HKS0.128 per
rights share, which was approved by independent
shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 12 April 2016. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$82,232,000 was for strengthen the Group’s capital
base without increasing finance cost.

®

)

During the year ended 30 June 2016, certain
share option holders exercised their opfion
rights under the old share optfion scheme
to subscribe for an aggregate of 53,760,000
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each at an exercise price of HKS$0.1294 per
share. The total proceeds was approximately
HK$6,957,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, all share
option holders exercised their option rights
under the new share opfion scheme and the
old share option scheme fo subscribe for an
aggregate of 177,440,000 and 80,640,000
ordinary shares, respectively, of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at an exercise price of HKS0.145
and HK$0.1294 per share respectively. The
fotal proceeds from exercise of share options
under the new share opfion scheme and the
old share option scheme were approximately
HK$25,729,000 and HK$10,434,000 respectively.

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

29. BB (=)

© R-FE—~<ERATNB - ARARK
FEBELIE (B ]) 2 5 A B AR
R8BS — R BT R TR
—RRERAED 2 o - AR
2 RBE(E0.1288 0317672,396,712R%
IR - BRA=E—AEMA+ =8
845 7 RS RIAE ST AR S
o FTSEUEB R 582,232,000 7T
R E RN A T AN A S
BoER -

(@ @ RZTE—AR"EXA=+AHLE
E - SO BERRIER B ARIRER
IR EIITHEERRER - A
B80.1294 B LT EEREE &
53,760,000% & i3 FI {£0.01 5 7T
ZARAREBRRG - FIERE
$4956,957,000/ 7T ©

(iy R-T—+E&EXA=+AHLEF
B FiBEBREREARRES
FEARIE AT B &k E R AR A AT 21171
HEERERN - LERR0.145% T
K0.12947 T 2 1TEERE A
177,440,000 % % 80,640,000 %
FREECO AL ARA L
IRER ) o IRBFTEAREGTEI R E
FBRR T BT T B IRER M FT 1S
%4 365 3140 525,729,000% 7T
110,434,000 7T ©
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30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 65
and 66 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Company includes
premium arising from the new issue of shares in the current
and prior years nefted of share issue expenses.

Under Section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the special reserve and share premium
account is available for distribution to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Arficles of Associatfion of
the Company which was in effect before the Change of
Domicile (defined as below) becoming effective on 20
August 2015 (Bermuda time) and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the special reserve and share
premium account unless, immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company shall be able fo pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the change of domicile of the Company from the Cayman
Islands to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders.
The change of domicile of the Company was subsequently
completed on 21 August 2015 (the "Change of Domicile”).
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds
in the share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reserve/Contributed surplus

The capital reserve account of the Company includes
the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation
upon listing in July 2000 and the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the amount of approximately HK$44,756,000 standing fo
the credit of the share premium account of the Group was
cancelled and transferred to an account designated as
capital reserve account. Upon the Change of Domicile
of the Company, such account was to be rename as
“Contributed surplus accounts”.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

30. fi#fE

WAFEAEEZ FERSEREE2TINGA Y
BMKRFEOS RO RIRE BB EIRA o
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ARz RIVHEROERFER EFERT
AR i MR BITRI -
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RAMERREBMUA TIAFR) R =F—h
FNAZ+E(BRERMH) EXFTE XA
HE o BRIE - REREHEZDIKIORMNRS
BEHR&  ARRAENEEREERBBERETZ
FHER - BRI REIREERRDRER
IR 2 IKSORF AR S -

RER -F—RF/\ARABBHNEFHIRZE
R ARAHASEESEMEAREEER
RAtAE - ARARBMERR-_ZT—HFEN
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f#f&E =)

Capital reserve/Contributed surplus (Continued)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the capital reserve account of the Company is distributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the distribution or payment of
dividend, the Company is able fo pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

After the Change of Domicile of the Company, under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus
account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Capital redemption reserve/Treasury share
reserve

Balance represented an amount equivalent to the par
value of the shares cancelled of HK$3,526,000 which
was transferred from the retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve during the years ended 30 June 2012
and 2013, pursuant to Section 37 of the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Upon the Change of Domicile, such
account was to be renamed as “Treasury share reserve”
account.

Available-for-sales investments revaluation
reserve

The available-for-sales investments revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of
available-for-sales investments held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EXEEBRRR @)
RERNEHBDRESTA) - ARRANER
FEBRRAT DR T AR FUERSARR - R BB
HARLRARE % - AARSAIHERE
BEBE(ER T BIREE -

RArREMAK  RIBEARE-NN\—FQF
% BEESRRAHES IR TR - A - W3
ERTER - BARRNSEIRIKNRS -
FEERBHRPELDIK :

- ARABRERARN R B EEEELED
HaE X

- ARAEENHTERBEERTESE
SREBERAS BTRANRBH 5
RO -

BAREE G ETRAEE

R-E——FR-T—=FA=1THILFE
LIRS E A E (B 3,526,0007% 7T B
REBENBAERBELRFE  DKBEREHRS
CRBIEBIFEIT IR - NEBM H1R - BEARERIH
BEEN A REFRARE

AtHEREGERE

A HERE G ERE SRR IRE R
HEERENAFEEBRF SR - WRES
BRI T2 APTH SRR
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share opfion scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are as follows:

(a) Old Share Option Scheme

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed
on 12 February 2007, adopted a share option
scheme (the "Old Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution fo the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and atftract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”). Eligible participants of the Old Share Option
Scheme include the directors and employees of
the Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity,
suppliers and customers of the Group or any Invested
Entity, any person or entity that provides research,
development or fechnological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity, any adviser or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, any joint
venture partner or business alliance that co-operates
with any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
in any area of business operation or development
and any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity. The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated
on 1 November 2016 upon the adoption of a new
share option scheme.
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31. EBRgEREl )
(a) EEREE (@)

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at 12 February 2007,
being the date of adoption of the Old Share Option
Scheme, (i.e. not exceeding 24,012,000 shares, which
were subsequently refreshed to 134,479,342 shares
during the year ended 30 June 2016). The Company
may seek approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Old
Share Option Scheme save that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options fo be granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company under the limit as ‘refreshed” shall not
exceed 10% of the fotal number of shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet fo be exercised under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of grant. Each grant of options to any
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
must be approved by independent non-executive
directors.

Where any grant of options fo a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates would result in the shares of the Company
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of options
already and to be granted in excess 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

RIBE B 87 X T BB A Z i)
BET/BHARAR-_ZZLF
A+ BERBRETIRABE TR
12 10% (BN i 38 728 X 7124,012,000
Bty - WEERREE T —RERX
RB=+THIFFEARERHE134,479,342
B%) o AN 2RI L B HTAR IR E B A A AT
B2 10%RAENERA G £ SRR
e ERTERBEEBREBIRAR
BRI E AR Rt BIFTR T 2 2 8008
P T 42 FRAS SE T IR BR AT T 31T 2 AR
REGE M SHBERILEERERHE
BT AR 210% » ERIRIBEBR
REET I AR RUEAE M5 SR 2 FE
BiE(BREZFHAITRE BiElH B
RIAR B E B A A 8 S (T H A 7T
SETECERE)AEREM S T
EETEAENR -

AR ERERER B RAR B E A H AR
B AEERLERETEZE
BEETREEITZERRMHEE - T
SHRBAARITHEHTRNAR L
30% o E 218 A HEA AR T 84
SEREBRE(BEETERHRITRE
W) 2 BEITHB TEITROEKE
MMSBHAR A G B RERMAAE ET
Bin21% - MEMEE - BFERITER
TERREHBREREBIFNTE
EHE

fiifa) = ERR AR RBIIEMITES
FRESAZBHBEALTRLBRE &
TEER RS ER Z BREETEME
TR BT 2 AR RIBRMDEBA R B
AR 20.1%3% [E{E# 85,000,000/ 7T
AR SIS A A BB ©
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options shall be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HKST1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, save
that such period shall not be more than ten years
from the date of the offer of the share options subject
to the provisions for early tfermination set out in the
Old Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before the
exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto
except otherwise imposed by the board of directors.
The exercise price is defermined by the Directors but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, 80,640,000
share options have been exercised and resulted
in the issue of 80,640,000 additional new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, with aggregate proceeds
before related issue expenses of approximately
HK$10,435,000. The average price of the shares of
the Company on the date which these share options
were exercised was HK$0.131 per share.

No options were granted/lapsed/cancelled under
the Old Share Option Scheme during the year.

The movement of number of share options under
the Old Share Option Scheme during the year is as
follows:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

31. BIRHETE w)

(o) EBRREE @)

REBE-Z—tFRA=THLFE

80,640, 0000 FE A2 E 4R 1T I E B3k
780,640,000 & i EI{E0.01 7 7T 2
BN E B - S FIRAFE (N
B AERAZ 1T RIS A ) /2 4910,435,0008
TT o AR BB NZEBRERETER
HZ FHERAEM0.131ET -

WA - EMBRESBEEED K
B,/ BB R ARAE -

AT AAREERBERRES S ZBK
RHEZEH

Number of share options
BRELA
Outstanding
Granted Exercised as af Date of Exercisable  Exercise price
Name or category Outstanding during the during the 30 June grant of period of of share
of parficipant as at 1July 2016 year year 2017 share options”  share opfions options™
RZB-RE R=B-tf
th-A AAZTH B BR BhRE
SRELBRFRRR RESHiE L FEERH REEARE  HAGEHE BERERE BTN ZATRE"
HKS per share
BlET
Directors
g2
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 13,440,000 - (13,440,000) - 27May2016 27 Moy 2016 0.1294
59 sk ZT-7E to26May 2017
(Resigned as on exective director RAZTtA ZENE
of the Company with effect from ;e
23 September 2016) ECEtE
(BZE-ENAZT=RERHR il
LYNSWEGEEE A7)
Mr. HUNG Kenneth 13,440,000 - (13,440,000) - 27Moy2016 27 Moy 2016 01294
EERTE ZE-7E to26May 2017
RAZT4A BN
RAZTHA
EIELE
il
Employees and other participants 53,760,000 - (53,760,000) - 27 Moy 2016 27 May 2016 01294
BIREMSEE ZE-7E to26May 2017
RAZTHA ZFRE
RAZt++A
EIE-tF
RAZT7H
80,640,000 - (80,640,000) -
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. EBiRERTE =)
(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued) (o) EBEREE (@)
The average price of the shares of the Company on AR ZEBEREEITERIRZ
the date which these share options were exercised B AEAR0.123B T ©

was HK$0.123 per share.

The following share options were granted in 2016 and IRTARZZE—NFREBEEERETE
remained outstanding under the Old Share Option BREMRZZE—ARFRNA=THIERE
Scheme as at 30 June 2016: 1Tl 2 FE st
Number of share options
BRELA
Outstanding Date of Exercisable Exercise
Name or category Asat Granted Exercised as af grant of period of price of
of participant 1July2015  duringtheyear duringtheyear ~ 30June 2016 share opfions’  share options  share opfions™
RZB-7E
R-E-1f ~B=1H B BhREz BhEz
SEELRRABER tA-8 REERH FEEME HATREE ERERE fis i@
HKS per share
glaT
Directors
gz
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong - 13,440,000 - 13440000 27May 2016 27 May 201610 01294
59 ik ZE-RE 0 Moy 2017
RAZt++E _T‘i ~E
Azt1AZ
—E-E
RAZtiH
Mr. HUNG Kenneth - 13,440,000 - 13440000  27May2016 27 May 201610 01294
i i ZE-RE 0 Moy 2017
RAZTHA ZFR
BAZTHAE
“E-tE
RAZTA
Employees and other participants - 107,520,000 (53,760,000) 53,760,000 27 Moy2016 27 May 201610 01294
EIREMSRE ZE-RE 0 Moy 2017
RAZTHA ZT5E
BAZTEAE
“F-tE
RAZTA

- 134,400,000 (53,760,000 80,640,000
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=ZT—+tFA=THILFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BRRESTE )
(@) OId Share Option Scheme (Contfinued) (o) ElRREE (#)
The vesting period of the share options is from the * FEkIE 2 BB AR R BRI
date of grant unfil the commencement of the exercise BB AL
period.
o The exercise price of the share options is subject to o MEARAE 2 1T R B AT R T AR sl 31T AL

B AR TRAZ EEL R B
T -

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

AERERREASN T R"FRA -+t
B H 2z B2 A FEREEAIATRE :

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair value of share options granted on 27 May 2016
under the Old Share Option scheme:

Directors Others
== Hit

Grant date 27 May 2016 27 May 2016
B HE —E—XFRA=++A —E-RXFRA=-TtA
Fair value at grant date HK$1,505,280/%& 7T HK$4,515,840/%8 7T
RERZATE
Number of share options granted 26,880,000 107,520,000
R RERERE
Exercise price HKS$0.1294%8 7T HK$0.1294/8 7T
171%(E
Expected volatility 125.85% 125.85%
TEERIR IR
Expected life 1 yearf 1 year4
& HA4F B
Risk-free rate 0.277% 0.277%
i JE =
Expected dividend yield Nil Nil
SELGEERS Ei i

The fair value of the 134,400,000 share options
granted on 27 May 2016 was calculated using the
Binomial Model. The expected volatility is used the
historical volatility of the stock price of the Company.
Risk free rafte represents the yields to maturity of
respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at the
valuation date.

RZE-—RFRAA-_T+TEtHEREZ
134,400,000 fE it 2 A F(E Th3% — A&
HEtE - BHIRIE TR B AR B BB R 2K
18 o JmER RN A SHEEEERZME
SREFIH YR

The Group recognised the total expense of M=
HK$6,021,120 for the year ended 30 June 2016 in
relation fo share options granted by the Company.

T-AEAAZTE AEERAATE
2 A IR B 6,021, 12055 5T «
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) New Share Option Scheme

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on
1 November 2016, adopted a new share option
scheme (the "New Share Option Scheme”) for the
substitution of the Old Share Option Scheme to
issue up to 10% of the shares in issue on the grant of
options under the New Share Option Scheme (i.e.
not exceeding 177,502,542 shares). The Company
may seek approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the New
Share Option Scheme save that the fotal number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company under the limit as “refreshed” shall not
exceed 10% of the fotal number of shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the New Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit.

There is no material difference between the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme and the Old Share
Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme
should, unless otherwise terminated or amended,
remain in force for ten years from 1 November 2016.

DX.com Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

31. BiREE 2
(b) FFERAETE

ARABRBER T E+—A—BE
B2 RERFNHERETE (38
PRt 2l ]) - AR E B ERT 2
I AR IR FT RS A A AT B S R AR A LA B
THRZARCRTRH210% (AREE
177,502,542/ /%157 ) © KA R ] gh B #7
BB E A 81 2 10% R BN AR A
& LSRR AE - HRTERIENE
BeHERT B AR R AUT (] B4t B AR A =1 2
BT T 2 2 SR 0E A T 1R PR AS S 3T IR 58
A T 31T 2 BRAD B TS B A i A
TR A HEBITRD AR Z10% o

JE BIARAR N I A A =T B AR A Rl E T
fb st BIR 2 BB (BB S M R TT
- BaEs « ERREIRIRERER 2
R E A EIE/TE 2 BRE) 5t
SHEREmNS NEFEER

B ERT B 2 R R E B R Bl
BRI EERER - ﬁ%%%%ﬂ'@
R TR IEHER] - BT —RF
+—RA—BER-—EER %%+¢°
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. EBiRERTE =)
(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) #HiEREE (&)
During the year, 177,440,000 share options have been RAEE - 177,440,0000% & R EC 1%
granted under the New Share Option Scheme. Apart SRR IR o BR_E3lOh - AR
from above, no options were exercised/lapsed/ FE - ERE I EITE R
cancelled under the New Share Option Scheme BUHE AR o AT RANFEEAREN
during the year. The movement of number of the RERCRERT B 2 BRE B B 2 &

share options under the New Share Option Scheme
during the year is as follows:

Number of share options

ERERA
Exercised  Oufstanding Exercisable  Exercise price
Asaf Granted during asat Date of grant of period of share of
Name or category of participant 1July 2016 during the year theyear 30 June 2017 share options of share options options’
HoB-t%
H=8-7F AAZTA
SRELERARRR tA-A REERE AEEAR  EATREA REBRERS BREZTESE BREZTRE
HKS per shore
SRR
Director
£
Mr. TAIMan Hin Tony - 17,744,000 (17.744,000) - 23 December 2016 23 December 2016 0.145
EyEyits ZE-RF 1022 December
(Aopoinfed os an exective +-A-+2H 2018
director of the Company with 5Nk
effect from 13 September 2016 and +ZA-1=R
fesigned on 1June 2017) EIEN
(B=E-"ENAT=REEZAA t-F-t-8
YN e
NA-BR#E)
Employees and other participants - 159,696,000 (159,696,000) - 23 December 2016 23 December 2016 0.145
BIRAkSEE ZE-7F 1022 December 2018
t-B=t=8 0k
t2AZt=R
EIE-)E
TZATTCE
- MO0 (177440000) -

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * PR 2 1T{E B AT R TR AR S B TAL
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or A& - SRR BIIRA 2 H AR OAE S i
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. AT -

The average price of the shares of the Company on RARRMDARZEEREETE R 2 FHE

the date which these share options were exercised 1% A&ZR0.170% 7T -

was HK$0.170 per share.
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. Bir#EstE o

The fair value of the 177,440,000 share options
granted on 23 December 2016 under the New Share
Option Scheme was calculated using the Binomial
Model. The expected volatility used the historical
volatility of the stock price of the Company. Risk-free
rate represents the yields to maturity of respective
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at the valuation
dafe.

The Group recognised a total expense of
approximately HK$710,000 during the year (2016:
HK$6,021,120 under the Old Share Option Scheme) in
relation fo share options granted by the Company.

All share options granted under the New Share

(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) %ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂgﬁiﬂ (4)
The following assumptions were used to calculate the BT BN —E—RF T
fair value of share options granted on 23 December ﬁ] + E%HﬂZE%Hx%Z ATERE
2016 under the New Share Option Scheme: R LA TN
Director Others
E Hit
Grant date 23 December 2016 23 December 2016
B HH —ZT—XE+-A=-+=8 —E—AFt+-A=-+=A
Fair value at grant date HK$70,9767 7T HK$638,7847%& 7T
BHBEZATE
Number of share options granted 17,744,000 159,696,000
BHERESE
Exercise price HK$0.145% 7T HK$0.145% 7T
171%(E
Expected volatility 110.084% 110.084%
TRERIR 18
Expected life 2 yearst 2 yearsF
T HAF B
Risk-free rate 1.243% 1.243%
e
Expected dividend yield Nil 4% Nil &
e HA B

BB ENR T —RF+_H
Z = H#H 2 177,440,000 0% i A% 1
ZAFETDE IR E - HHK
fPETJﬂ%$ Tﬂxf‘iﬁ’lﬁﬁ"i&ﬁlrﬁ o FE[E

EENFERSERETERZMES
mTFE‘JHHZHSZ/\ g

RAFE » AEBRAR AR H 2B
RERER AR < #710,0008 7L (—F—7X
FRBEEBRER 6,021,120
) ©

REBF B BIIR L 2 P A IR gD

Option Scheme have been exercised by the grantees RAFERARAITE R-ZE—+F
during the year. As at 30 June 2017, no share option NA=TH  BEREREBRETSIR

was oufstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme
and New Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the New
Share Option Scheme was 62,542, representing
approximately 0.002% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. BB AT
2017 —E—+F
(a) Money-lending business (o) EEEF

On 7 October 2016, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Company acquired (the
"Success Beauty Acquisition”) 100% equity interest
in Success Beauty Limited and its subsidiary, Ever
Great Finance Limited (collectively referred as the
"Success Beauty Group”) at a final consideration of
approximately HK$59,515,000. The Success Beauty
Group is principally engaged in money-lending
business. The Success Beauty Acquisition was
completed on 7 October 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the Success Beauty Group as at 7 October 2016,
being the completion date of the Success Beauty
Acquisition, were as follows:

R-ZZE—RE+AtH ARFAE—
BB E=HFINBEERE  REE
E 'k - A2 Al Y Success Beauty
Limited R £ B ARIEE T K AR
A&l (& [ Success Beauty & & |)
2100% A  REREAD
59,515,0007% 7t ([ Success Beauty Uz
B2 |) o Success BeautysE B v T 2%
B AEEET - ZSuccess Beauty g
BERZZ—~"F+ALBREK -

Success Beauty & B ZF — /N F +
A+ B (Success Beauty I i 52 ik B
Bz #REERBBEZATFENAT :

Fair value
recognised on the
Success Beauty

Acquisition

FiSuccess Beauty

WHECERZAFE

HK$'000

FET

Loan and interest receivables FEUCE TR F BBR R 48,468

Cash and bank balances Re RIBTTHER 10,047
Total identifiable net assets of the %A FEYI 8 2 Success Beauty%k B

Success Beauty Group at fair value ZAIBAEEFERTE 58,515

Goodwill (note 15) EEGEIR) 1,000

Cash consideration PReSHzRE 59,515

The goodwill arising from the Success Beauty SR Success Beauty U B A= 4 2 75
Acquisition is attributable to the future growth EBRBREGHBIIELEZ RKER
and profitability expected fo arise from business Ko Al

combination.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2017 (Continued)
(a) Money-lending business (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Success

32. KEBKE AT =
—E—tF #®
(a) EEFK (#)
EiSuccess Beauty W iE B 8 2 IR &7

Beauty Acquisition is as follows: EOMWAT
HK$’'000
FHERT
Cash consideration ReRE 59,515
Cash and bank balances acquired PR S < & SR ERTTAE (10,047)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AR EFSREREZHE LIRS EEHAE
included in cash flows from investing I EEE
activities 49,468

Following the completion of the Success Beauty
Acquisition, the Success Beauty Group confributed
HK$2,973,000 of consolidated revenue and
HK$2,833,000 of consolidated profit to continuing
operations to the Group during the year.

Had the acquisition of the Success Beauty Group
been taken place at the beginning of the financial
year ended 30 June 2017, the consolidated revenue
and the consolidated loss from the continuing
operations of the Group for the year would be
increased to HK$324,688,000 and HK$51,227,000,
respectively.

Details of the Success Beauty Group were disclosed

in the Company’s announcements dated 7 October
2016 and 11 October 2016, respectively.
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7 Success Beauty U f& 58 pk & -
Success Beauty &£ BIIA AR FE SRS
B2 B ¥ 15 EE2,973,00075 70
ZERB WA K 2,833,000 T 2 A
A e

fit Y B8 Success Beauty s @R EE —
T+ HFNA=THIEMBEE 2 ¥
£ AEERAFEZHGEERARKE
SELEEB IR EEBEBA R EHE
324,688,000/ 7T 51,227,000 7T °
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32. ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueay 32. YWEBKMIB A E] (2
2017 (Continued) —E—tF #®
(b) Business of provision of property (b)) DEEERYFIERE

management and property agency
services

On 1 December 2016, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which, the Company
acquired (the “Central Pearl Acquisition”) 100% equity
interest in Central Pearl Investments Limited and
its subsidiary, Full Profit Property Services Company
Limited (collectively referred as the "Central Pearl

RZB—RF+-A—H  KARAFE—
BENE=FRIVEE RE  REEE
e - ARRRBERIREFR AR R
Hf B AR ERMERBEERAR (S
M EREE ) Z100%R A - K(E
#320,000,0008T([ £HUKHE]) - 24
SEZIEXBRANEBREYEER

Group”) at a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. RFERIEZ RIS - ZEBWEE R =
The Central Pearl Group is principally engaged in T RNFTZA—HEK -

provision of property management and property

agency services in Hong Kong. The Central Pearl

Acquisition was completed on 1 December 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities BFEREER-_T—RF+A—H(E
of the Central Pearl Group as at 1 December 2016, FZWHETKAE) 2 AIHAIEERERE

being the completion date of the Central Pearl ZAFEAT
Acquisition, were as follows:

Fair value

recognised on the

Central Pearl

Acquisition

BmEEUWE

ERRAZLATYE

HK$’'000

FHERT

Property, plant and equipment (note 14)  #)2 « B/E k& & (Mi5E14) 190
Trade receivables W AR X 565
Prepayments and other receivables TETFRIE K oAt e U AR AR 208
Cash and bank balances W e RIRTTAH 3.453
Accruals FEEtE R (15)
Tax payables FERT & (810)

Total identifiable net assets of the Central & AFEFIERZ £ EB 2 Al #7

Pearl Group at fair value BEFERTE 3,591
Goodwill (note 15) EEGEIR) 16,409
Cash consideration RB&EN2RE 20,000
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (confinued)
2017 (Continued)
(b) Business of provision of property

management and property agency
services (Continued)

The goodwill arising from the Central Pearl Acquisition
is aftributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Central
Pearl Acquisition is as follows:

No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

BB HmRM T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

32. KEBMIB A E]
—E—tF @)
(b)) DEEERYFHIERE (&)

BRRERWEMEL 2B TIGBHE
OB PTE £ 2 RAIER SR A

HEPWBAEHEZHSRENTMT

FHER
HK$’'000
Cash consideration ReRE 20,000
Cash and bank balances acquired PRUHE < 3 & RT T4 8R (3.453)
Net outflow of cash and cash AAREEREREC R NS EMEE
equivalents included in cash flows Bz imtF5
from investing activities

Following the completion of the Central Pearl
Acquisition, the Central Pearl Group contributed
HK$3,887,000 of consolidated revenue and
HK$839,000 of consolidated profit to the continuing
operations to the Group during the year.

Had the acquisition of the Central Pearl Group been
taken place at the beginning of the financial year
ended 30 June 2017, the consolidated revenue and
the consolidated loss from the continuing operations
of the Group for the year would be increased to
HK$324,101,000 and HK$51,471,000, respectively.

Details of the Central Pearl Acquisition were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 1 December
2016.
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16,547

REZEBTKE  =LEERA

FERAEEZHFAERLEEBER

3,887,000/ 7T 2 #x & A 12 839,000/
TCZERE A

MR R EEREE—T—tF /A
=T HIETBRFEZNEE - AEER
REEZHREWARREFEREET
ZiRAEEE S B EFAZ324,101,000
Bt &51,471,0008 7T ©

FRWEZFBERENA RGBSR A=
E—RNF+-_A—HZAE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (coniinued) 32. YBBHIB 2] )
2016 —E-RF
(c) Acquisition of an on-line sales platform (c) WEHLHEFE

On 19 April 2016, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which, the Company
acquired (the “Lujolujo Acquisition”) 96.17% equity
interest in Lujolujo Asia Limited (“"Lujolujo”) at a
cash consideration of approximately HK$3,680,000.
Lujolujo is principally engaged in E-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform under the name
of “funshare.com”. The Lujolujo Acquisition was
completed on 30 June 2016 (the “Acquisition Date").

The Directors were the opinion that the principal
asset of Lujolujo was the on-line sales platform under
the name of “funshare.com” and had no operation
as at the Acquisition Date. Therefore, the Lujolujo
Acquisition was not accounted for as a business
combination as the Group obtained control of
Lujolujo. Accordingly, the excess of the consideration
over the individual identifiable assets and liabilities
of Lujolujo as at the Acquisition Date had been
recognised in other infangible assets.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Lujolujo as at 30 June 2016, being the Acquisition
Date, were as follows:

RZZ—ARFWMA+NR » "RAFHE
—EBBIUE=FFIVEBEHE  BE
B E i - N2 aUHE Lujolujo Asia
Limited ([ Lujolujo |) 296.17%M% 7s 1
= K& 43,680,000/ ([ Lujolujolit
B ]) o Lujolujoz EEXEBAETEE
K A#BUA[ funshare.com J HR 48 54
EF 4 o ZlujolupBER = —7X
FRA=TH(WKERE K -

EERALUolujoE B & E A LA Ik
[funshare.com |12t 4 FHEF &
ZAREWIEBHERREEMEE -
FE Lt + Lujolujo ik B K % 1 3¢ 7 2 LA 1B
¥APHETTIRE o MLujolujodiiE B H
2 iB% 2 WIER B D BB Al # 5
BERABEZTEHEERBEMERE
= o

LujolujoZ AT BRI EERBER =T
—A~NFERA=TAH WEEHZAFE
LN

Fair value

recognised

on the Lujolujo

Acquisition

FLujolujolt BE=ETE

EERZATE

HK$’000

FiET

Other intangible assets (note 16) Hip & E (FiaE16) 1,715

Prepayments and other receivables TR 3RI8 K H At LR BR 53X 924

Time deposits TE BT 808

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAERR 2,169

Trade payables JERTE IR (477)

Other payable and accruals HipfEfTIE R EStAE (1,381)
Total identifiable net assets of Lujolujo at %A FEFER Z LujolujoZ A 3 7

fair value BEFEETE 3,758

Non-controlling interests iR 78)

Cash consideration BRI 2 RE 3,680
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (coniinued) 32. YBBHIB A 7] )

2016 (Continued) —E-RE#)

(c) Acaquisition of an on-line sales platform (c) KEH FHETE &)
(Cenintice) ELUjolujo B EEEMZ RS RED
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Lujolujo HraaTR

Acquisition is as follows:

HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration ReERE 3,680
Cash and bank balances and time deposits  FTH g 2 18 & K IR 1745 R IA K E
acquired HA
e (2.977)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents  FTAREFBESREZRER
included in cash flows from investing ReFMBEBEE ML FE
activities 703
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group disposed

of certain subsidiaries as follows:

The EPRO (BVI) Group

The disposal of the EPRO (BVI) Group was completed on 31

August 2015.

Details of the disposal of EPRO (BVI) Group are as follows:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

33. HEMEQT

REBE-ZT-—R"EFRNA=ZTHLFE  ~&E

HEETHERR - FHEAT :

EPRO (BVI) £/

HEEPRO BVNEEEE IR —E—HF/\ A

=+—HzK -

HEEPRO (BVI)EE 2 SEEINT

HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - IR R 2,117
Interest in an associate =N o -
Available-for-sales investments A ERE =
Trade receivables FEWE 5 58 74,909
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FBNFIE - #& M HAb K FIE 6,236
Cash, bank balances and deposits B RITEBRRIES 16,608
Trade payables JERE 5308 (287)
Other payables and accruals H e FIE M et B B (34,508)
Deferred revenue IRIEHA (495)
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FEERITER (2.727)
Tax payable R 92)
Deferred tax IRAERIE (4.182)
Net assets BEFE 57,579
Non-controlling interest IR R (926)
Realisation of exchange reserve BIRAE R 5,543
62,196
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 6) HENB AR 2 EE (MiEs) (1.932)
60,264
Satisfied by: PAVES K
Cash B 60,264
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AR WIEERR M

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of the cash and cash

33. HEMEBAE »
HEHENBARZ RS RERBSER $h

equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries are as AZAIIATR
follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration BERE 60,264
Cash and bank balance disposed of P& 2 & RIRTITHE SR (16,608)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in ERLENBARZRe RERBEERR
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries NFEE 43,656

During the year ended 30 June 2017, there was no disposal
of subsidiaries.

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Such leases
are negotiated for the terms ranging from one to three
years.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

HE_Z—+FAA=THILFE  HELE
=PNCI

34. BEHHRHE
ARBREEERORHEDE THATNE
REIES - @HE2PEAEPNT—F=
& o

REZZB—EFXA=1TH  RETAHHEEE
A - REBREIA T FER N 2 RRRIEE

due as follows: NES@EOT :
2017 2016
—E2—tHF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Within one year —F A 1,668 4,286
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEERTF(PEERWNE) 40 2,221
1,708 6,507
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35.

36.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for those detailed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2017 and
2016.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=ZT—+FSA=THIEFE

35. HiAXAE
WA B REMEI A - R=E—+
FR-F—AEAASTA - ARBGAET
EAHARM -

36. FEALXR B KGR

REENFAREBBALIIINTRS ¢

AEBIBERAS IS
2017 2016
et —EE
HK$'000 HK$"000
FHT TR

Total employee benefits paid to key MEEEEAIMNZEEERER

management personnel

Further details of directors” emoluments are included in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

3,658 7,602

EHREEME 2 FHEC BRER & WIS IR
8 o
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Year ended 30 June 2017 &E=%

BB HmRM T

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

37. LITIGATION

On 16 August 2012, the plaintiff (the "Plaintiff”), Klipsch
Group, Inc., filed a suit in the federal district court (the
"Court”) in the United States (the "U.S.”) against certain
defendants, including one of the on-line sales platforms (the
“Subject Domain”) of the Group, in respect of (i) trademark
counterfeiting; (ii) frademark infringement; and (iii) false
designation of origin (the ‘“Litigation”). The Plaintiff claimed
that certain products (the “Klipsch-Branded Iltems”) were
registered by them in the U.S. and that infringing Klipsch-
Branded Items had been sold to customers in the U.S.
via the Subject Domain. The Plaintiff sought damages,
attorneys’ fees and sanctions. Hence, the Plaintiff instructed
Paypal to freeze US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,600,000) (the “Frozen Amount”) from the Group’s
Paypal account on 27 August 2012.

On 21 September 2012, the Group filed sales documents
with the Court indicating that the sales amount (the
“Infringing Sales Amount”) of the infringing Klipsch-Branded
ltems intfo the U.S. amounted to less than US$700. The
Court considered that the Frozen Amount was excessive
and accordingly, the Court entered an order reducing the
Frozen Amount from US$2,000,000 to US$20,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$156,000) on 11 October 2012. The
Plaintiff asserted in December 2012 that the Subject
Domain continued to sell additional Klipsch-Branded ltems.
The Group filed additional sales documents establishing
that the revenues derived from sales into the U.S. of the
additional Klipsch-Branded ltems were less than US$125.

On 3 December 2013 the Plaintiff filed an amended
complaint naming EPRO E-commerce Limited ("EPRO
EComm”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that
operates the Subject Domain as a defendant in place of
the Subject Domain, and naming as fictitious entities other
domains operated by EPRO EComm.

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as to United
States laws on 12 August 2014 that the United States District
Court for the Southern District of New York (the "District
Court”) entered an order temporarily restraining the use of
US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,000,000)
(the "Restrained Sum”) in the bank accounts and other
financial accounts of EPRO EComm (in addition to the
Frozen Amount of US$20,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000)). A hearing regarding the asset restraining
order was completed on 11 February 2015 (U.S. time).
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(PEAEEEP—ER EHEETFA(THEA
2481 DIRBFA(TEFALD - RERE - KE
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ENAZ+LEEREBEREASBEER
/52,000,000 7T (48 & 7 #915,600,0005# 7T )
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RZZE—=FAA=1+—8  AEERZER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

37. LITIGATION (continuea)

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as to
United States laws on 3 November 2015, that the District
Court entered an order fo reduce the Restrained Sum from
US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,000,000)
to US$25,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$195,000).
The District Court has also made an order for EFRO EComm
fo pay for reasonable costs and fees incurred by fthe
Plaintiff during certain legal process relating to the above
matter. However, the Company was subsequently informed
by its legal adviser as to United States laws on 4 November
2015 that the District Court had granted an application to
delay the effectiveness of the reduction of the Restrained
Sum.

Another hearing was held on 10 November 2015 (New
York time), on which the District Court decided to continue
fo temporarily restrain the use of the Restrained Sum. On
30 September 2016 (New York time) the District Court
issued an order assessing costs and fees against EPRO
EComm in the amount of US$2,681,406.45 and retaining
the Restrained Sum of US$5,000,000 (the “30 September
2016 order”). On 26 October 2016 (New York time), EPRO
EComm filed a Notice of Appeal against the 30 September
2016 order. The Company is currently seeking legal advice
from its United States legal adviser as to the above matter
and the Company will make further announcement as and
when appropriate.

The Directors have exercised their due care in assessing the
financial impact in respect of the legal costs and claims, if
any, of the Litigation. Taking intfo account of the amount of
the Restrained Sum and the possible legal and professional
costs to be incurred, the Company has made a sufficient
provision for the Litigation as at 30 June 2017. Since the
Litigation is still on-going, the Directors would continue to
exercise their due care in monitoring the progress of the
Litigation and would assess the adequacy of provision for
the Litigation and the financial impact to the Group as and
when appropriate.

Year ended 30 June 2017 &E—=%

37.

iR WIEERR ML

—tEFRAZTHELEFE

HioNED,
R-Z—RFE+—A=H ARARHEE
SR EZEREMBN B EREAS

< X E &5 H 5,000,000 T (HHERL
39,000,0005% 7T ) &l > % 25,0003 7T (485 7
#9195,000/8 L) » REVEBEME RS

EETEBAXNREERE SR ZE
TERBEFPABRRZAEXANRER - BH
BR—T—RET—HAME  ARAAEHER
ERDHOEERBRBA - RECER AR R
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\

S—HRMAR-_ZE—RF+— A+ BRI
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
has the following events:

(@

®)

Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

On 31 March 2017, the Group entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Mr. Che Xiaofei (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant to which, the Subscriber subscribed
(the “Subscription”) for 245 new shares of EPRO
E-commerce Group Limited ("EPRO E-Commerce”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a
cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. Upon the
completion of the Subscription on 1 August 2017,
the shareholding of EPRO E-Commerce held by the
Company was diluted to 51%.

Agency business for licensed intellectual
property (*IP”) rights

As detailed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group acquired (i) 100% equity
interest in Sense Media Group Limited, and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the "Sense
Group”); and (ii) the outstanding loan (the “Sales
Loan”) owing by the Sense Group to the Vendor
at a consideration (the "Consideration”) of
HK$80,000,000 (subject to adjustments) in which, (i)
as to HK$10,000,000 be satisfied by cash; and (i) the
remaining balance of HK$70,000,000 be satisfied by
the issuance of zero coupon redeemable convertible
bonds. As at 30 June 2017, a deposit of HK$5,000,000
(note 21) has been paid by the Group to the vendor
and the acquisition was completed subsequent to
the end of the reporting period on 7 August 2017.
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REEHRE - AEEBATFE

(@)

®)

BIEHENB A
R-E—+F=ZA=+—0 A&EFHHE
BEISEE([REAL I ZRERZE
([REmZ]) - BILREABRE245
%EPRO E-commerce Group Limited
([ E-commerce Group Limited | » &
KRB ZEZEWBAR)FRG R
X fE4£20,000,0007%7c ([ REEE]) °
RZZE—+FN\FB—BREFETK
1% » QX EFFE ZEPRO E-commerce
MR 2 51% °

REABERRERER

MANER A B TSR R M 21 Pt - AR E
B (i) Sense Media Group Limited
REMIE A R (578 R Sense £ @ 1) #)
100%R%4E © K (i) Sense £ BEREH
ZAREEER(HEER]D - BREA
80,000,000 7T ([Xf& |) (A T3 -
£ 7 (i) 10,000,000 7T I LA B & %
f & R (i) # £ 70,000,000 It 4 bA B¢
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)
(c) Subscription of shares

38. SREHAREEE»)

() RBBH

On 14 September 2017, the Company entered
intfo a share subscription agreement (the “Share
Subscription Agreement”) with Great Window
Limited (the "Target”, together with its subsidiaries
and conftrolled entities, the “Target Group”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which,
the Company subscribed for 1 new share (the
“Subscription Share”) of the Target at a consideration
of HK$10,000,000. The Subscription Share represents
20% of the issued share capital of the Target
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Share. The Target Group is principally
engaged in the (i) operation of on-line-to-off-line
(0©20) platforms for promotion and trading of artistic
works in mainland China; (ii) undertaking physical
artistic works sales exhibitions on co-operation basis
with well-known art brands in Hong Kong; and (iii)
the commercialisation of infellectual property rights
arising out of artistic works in the Greater China
region.

The completion of the Share Subscriptfion is subject
to the fulflment and/or waiver of certain conditions
under the Share Subscription Agreement and
therefore, the Share Subscription has not been
completed at the date of this report. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 September
2017 for details of the Share Subscripfion.

RZT—+tFNATHA, AARHE
Great Window Limited([ B2 &] ] -
EREMNBAREZEHEE AN BIZ
S8 )T R RIE R (AR RE
WEl) Bt ARRERBEER
ALZ TR ([REERR (D 1) - REA
10,000,000/ 7T ° REEAR MR 15 B IZA A
KRB R B TRRIB AR DR A 2 B BT
R220% - BIZEBEEZHREG)RFPEH
R EE FR T (020) FAUEER
BEBTER (i) BEBNEEMTME
SEARERBMIERREIEE ¢ K(ii)
KA EE i [ ATV AN R E R R 3 o

R BB BRI BE TR K Sk EA
B RIB AR T A TR - 8RO
RBRAHE B HEARTTK o B BB
ZHBR2EARRBEMA T —+F
NATHBEZRAE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39. &MTAZ9%E
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIERR  SEeMTAZEREERT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets MBERE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RAVEFAREZEREE
Designated as such upon Held-to-maturity Available-for-sale financial
inifial recognition Held for trading investments Loans and receivables assets Total
RISEIREE KFER KEHARE ERREYH AfihELHEE &t
2017 216 2017 216 2017 2016 2017 216 2017 216 2017 216
2t CEE ZB-tE SR IE-tF CEF ZE-tF ST ZEtF CIE DBt CRE
HK$'000  HKS'000 - HKS'000  HKS'000 | HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000
TER T TiEn T TEn TEx TR AL TER AL TER T
Trade receivables - - - - - - 4197 653 - - 4191 653
Loan and inferest
receivables - - - - - - 94,161 - = - 94,161 -
Financiol assefs R
included in ReREME
prepayments, Yisaz o8
depostsandother ~ AZ
receivables - - - - - - 27,909 75,483 - - 21909 75483
Avallobleforsales  FHAERE
investments - - - - - - - - 29,700 56,151 29,700 56,151
Equity investments ot A FEFTAE
fairvaluethough ~ EZHRERE
profit or loss - - 219 5472 - - - - - - 219 5472
Pledged deposits 2T = - - - - - 30 2028 - - 30 2028
Cosh and cash ReRRe%E
equivolents 2R = - - - - - 94,458 30017 - - 94,458 30017
- - 219 5472 - - 210 12630 29,700 56,151 250,954 187,994
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 9. 2T AZSHE »
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities Uy =N

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit o loss

ROVEFABREHER
Designated as such upon Financial liabilities at
inifial recognition Held for frading amortised cost Total
MISRAREE RFRE REHERASIRZERAR a5t

2017 216 2017 216
SRt T SRtE CTF
HK$'000  HKS000 - HK§'000  HKS'000
T TER TR TR

2017 2016 2017 216
SRt T SR tE CTRF
HK$'000  HKS000 - HK§'000  HKS'000
TR TEL TR TR

Trade payables ERE A% - - = -
Financial liobifies includedin -~ AR MERFERERH &EZ
other payables ond accrucls  £BEfE - - = -

9,685 230 9,685 2,303

9,741 11,616 9,741 11,616

Inferest-bearing bank
borrowing FTRBITIE - - - - - 10,000 - 10000
- - - 19,426 45939 19,426 45939
40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 40. BIIETEATER A FEBHR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s REBEMETE(EEEEATEABREE
financial instruments, other than those with carrying KON EEEEE R AT EMT ¢
amounts that reasonably approximate fo fair values, are as
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
FREE NFEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF ZEREF —E—t5F ZEREF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$"000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET FTET FHET
Financial assets HBEE
Available-for-sales
investments AHEERE 29,700 56,151 29,700 56,151
Equity investments at fair BATEE AR
value through profit or loss ZRERE 219 5,472 219 5,472
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, tfrade receivables,
loan and interest receivables financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included frade payables, other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank borrowings and note
payables approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short ferm maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group'’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

40. BBTAXFERAFERBR
()

EEECDHHREMREFEER - EHEMF
K KRB SRR - BRERRA SRR - &
AR - BE REMREGFENTEE
E AT ARNE SR - R ENRERET
BE  FERTERERENZEENMBRER
FE - ZFTANAFERREERS T2
BN %ETASZEHNEIE -

DFERBR
TRITAEBIH TANDTEFEER -

AT EROAE

Fair value measurement using

AFEHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3) Total
RERTERE EXTRENARE EXTTERRANE
(E-8) (=) (%=8) Eh
2017 216 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 216
“2-tF  E “3-t§  F S8t CERE | IRt T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tin TR TER TR Thm TR TER
Available-for-sales AHHERE
invesfments 29,700 56,151 - - - - 29,700 56,151
Equity invesiments BATE AER
at foir value through LREHE
profit or loss 219 5472 - - - - 219 5472
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowing and
other payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities (e.g. frade receivables and trade payables),
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate as at 30
June 2017 and 2016. The Group'’s results and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures as the
sales and purchases of the Group were mainly fransacted
in United States dollars (*"USD"), Renminbi (*RMB"),
Australian dollars ("AUD"), Canadian dollars ("*CAD"), EURO
("EUR"), Brazil Real ("BRL") and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD").
Approximately 97% (2016: 99%) of the Group's sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making the sale, and
almost 93% (2016: 91%) of costs are denominated in the
unifs’ other functional currency.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the exchange
rate of USD was rather stable. Approximately 54% of the
Group'’s sales are denominated in this currency (2016:
approximately 57%).

iR WIEERR ML
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41.

i ms EE B R RBUR
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT . BRERER B ERBER @)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period fo a reasonably possible change in

SRR (@)
TREREHEMEBRFTEZERT -
REEZ BB AE RN RS AREAT -

the exchange rates of AUD, CAD, RMB, EUR and BRL to HKD, T ARE  BrkEAEEEREXRHRGIE
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss Al BE E BT 2 BURE ©
before tax.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity*
Bzt BRBLATE 1R ’EzmEm/
(T¥) #in,/ (i) GRA) *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TERx TET
30 June 2017 —E-tFXA=TH
If HKD weakens against AUD fisd 78 7T R T 55 ) 3 -
If HKD strengthens against AUD {8 i 5 ®) -
If HKD weakens against CAD T 7T 3 T 55 (%) m =
If HKD strengthens against CAD 87T 5, hic o8 5 1 -
If HKD weakens against RMB & T AR ES3 %) 270 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB i m i AR 554 5 (270) =
If HKD weakens against EUR fHB T BUTES (%) 1,291 -
If HKD strengthens against EUR TR 7T BT 58 5 (1.291) -
If HKD weakens against BRL BT LB AEERES (5) 321 -
If HKD strengthens against BRL ETHERE DRER 5 (321) =
30 June 2016 —T-RERA=TH
If HKD weakens against AUD AT R 55 ) - -
If HKD strengthens against AUD 8 T 5 B r 0% 5 - -
If HKD weakens against CAD A TT L T 55 ) m -
If HKD strengthens against CAD i 0 i i17Ci538 5 1 -
If HKD weakens against RMB AT AREES ) 1,976 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB 8L X AR 8% 5 (1,976) -
If HKD weakens against EUR AT BT 55 %) 151 -
If HKD strengthens against EUR fi 7 X BT g 5 (151) -
* Excluding retained profits * TEIERBRF
The Group has no foreign exchange contracts outstanding R-E—+tFNA=1THKER -_Z—XFEA
as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016. :Jr E AR BN AT R (B R 2 = BNE S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. For fransactions that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
ferms without the specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise trade receivables, loan and infterest
receivables, deposits and other receivables, available-
for-sales investments, equity investments of fair value
through profit or loss, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maoximum exposure equal fo the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Apart form e-commerce, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. There is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group.

The Group managed credit risk of loan and interest
receivables at every stage of the risk management system,
including pre-approval, review and credit approval and
post-transaction monitoring process. All fransactions
should be subject to the review and approval from credit
department.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance continuity
of funding and flexibility through various fund raising
exercises.

iR WIEERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+FA=THIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (confinued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On demand

2017 216 2017
Rt _TF SRtE
HK$'000  HKS$'000 - HK$'000

41.

Less than 3 months
RERER PR=

faA
216

No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

BFERREEBFEREER @

REES R (&)
REEIR - AREZ SRMAFRECD TR
BRR SR Z B ER T :

3o less
than 12 months 1105 years Total
ZBAEHMT=fAR it a3t

2017 216 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZENF 2Rt ST SE-tF CTRF SRR TR
HK$'000 -~ HKS'000  HKS'000 = HKS'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000

Téx TEr TRrn TEr Tz TEr TEx  TEr TEn  TEn
Trade payobles ERHEHER - - 9685 24323 - - - - 9685 24303
Otherpayablesond occruals — EftERFUARME 8B | 3876 4489 586 717 = - = - 1A Mel6
Interestbearing bank borowing & 8EAT{ER - - - 10000 - - - - - 10,000
3,875 4489~ 15551 41450 - - - - 19426 45939

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level
of equity indices and the value of individual securifies.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
significant equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is fo safeguard the Group’s ability fo continue as a going
concern and fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order fo
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments fo if, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital fo shareholders of issue new shares.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes trade payables, other payables and accruals,
deposits received in advance and interest-bearing bank
borrowing less pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

41.

BEEMEEEERBER @

EXRER (#)
AEBEEAEARBBLR(ABEHER AL
BARMEERFESE) EREAN - BRFFE
BEENESEN - HMEMFIEKENA
&~ AR KM RIRITEFORE IR F RN
RehREEEER - BEABREARRRIBRAR
BAEIEER - RIREHR  BEARABEHLRN
T

2017 2016

—Z—tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHET

Trade payables B SRR 19,658 34,296
Other payables and accruals HAhEAIE R ERT B & 63,231 54,756
Deposits received in advance TEWIZ S 1,487 3,746
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FTEIRITER - 10,000
Less: Pledged deposits B BERTER (310) (20,218)
Cash and cash equivalents Re kReHEER (94.458) (30,017)

Net (cash)/debt (Bs) EEFE (10,392) 52,563
Equity affributable to equity holders  #zi1 B AE(E R 241,107 132,019
Total capital FEEEWIN 241,107 132,019
Capital and net cash/debt BARB S EEFE 230,715 184,582
Gearing ratio ARG FLE N/A 28.48%

42. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures and items and balances have
been adjusted and reclassified fo conform with the current
year’s presentation.

42.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43.
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NGILUE T

RABRRERR 2 ABARRRERNT

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries and a LI ENGISEERZ T AVA/N
structured entity 2I®E 83,206 3,681
Available-for-sales investments ARPERE 29,700 56,151
Total non-current assets SERMBEERTE 112,906 59,832
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEURPT B A R IE 133,455 50,633
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIA - 11E RE A EUER
receivables 5,503 128
Equity investments at fair value BATEER  RERE
through profit or loss 219 5,472
Cash and cash equivalents RekFSFEEB 52,326 17,215
Total current assets ENVEELATE 191,503 73,448
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due fo a subsidiary FERTH B A A 61,733 -
Other payables and accruals HAb BN RIE R EFTAE 1,569 1,261
Total current liabilities BB EEE 63,302 1,261
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 128,201 72,187
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBAE
LIABILITIES 241,107 132,019
Net assets BEFH 241,107 132,019
EQUITY E=
Issued capital B EITRRAR 27,762 13,986
Reserves B 213,345 118,033
Total equity A 241,107 132,019
POON MAN SUM Al KUIYU
B XEF
Director Director
EF EF
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=—Z—+F NA=THILFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. 28I BRRRAR =
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: BRE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREEHEZWT ¢
Treasury
share Available-
Contributed reserve/ forsales
Share surplus/ Capital Share  Investments
premium Capital  redemption option  revaluation Retained
account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ERERA
BHER/  Gk/EK TithE
REER N1 ] ROfE  BRERE REHERR Rezi At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thr Thn FiEn T Thr T T
(Nofe3))  (Nofe3))  (Nofe3))  (Nofe3l)  (Nofe3)
(H430) (H:130) (h:130) (FzE31) (F£30)
1July 2015 44,756 - 3526 - - 12,287 60,519
Share consolidation and capital reduction 50,436 - - - - 50,436
Transfer to contributed surplus (note 30) (44,756) 44,756 - - - - -
Issue shares, net of shares issue expenses (nofe 29) 2730 - - - - - 2,730
Rights issue of shares (nofe 29) 75,508 - - - - - 75,508
Exercise of share options (note 31) 8,677 - - (2.208) - - 6419
Loss for the yeor and fotal comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (109.791) (109.791)
Decrease in fair volue of available-for-sales IRHERERATEZRD
investments - - - - (21.379) - (21379)
Reclossication adjustment to profit or loss on BERERENENERE
impairment loss on available-for-sales invesiments - - - - 21570 - 21,510
Equity-sefled share option arrangements (nofe 31) W HAETREZH (331) - - - 6,021 - - 6,021
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 RZE-RERA=THR
“E-REtA-H 106,915 95,192 3526 3,763 6,191 (97.554) 118,033
Issue of shares, net of shares issued expenses BIRAENRRAROEL
- July 2016 GM Placing (note 29(b)(i) -ZB-RELR-RERREEE
(K529(0) i) 2,257 - - - - - 28,257
- October 2016 SM Placing (note 29(b) i) -Z5-RETRKERERESE
(BisE29(b) i) 52,767 - - - - - 52,767
- April 2017 GM Placing (nofe 29(b)(iv)) -ZE-tEMA-RERRESE
(Biz29(0)(iv)) 37,876 - - - - - 31,876
Exercise of share opfions (nofes 29(d)(ijand 31) 7SR (H29(d)(i) R31) 38,056 - - (4473 - - 33,563
Loss for the year and fotal comprehensive income  A£EEER2ANEEE
for the year - - - - (51,295) (51,295)
Decrease in fair value of available-for-sales THEEREATEZEY
investments = = = - (979) = (979)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss EENEFENENI R
on impairment loss on available-for-sales
investments - - - - 88 - 88
Release of investment valuation reserve upon REETHHERENRERE
disposal of available for sales investments GBEER - - - - (5:695) - (5.695)
Equity-settled share option arrangements (note 31) RS ARBRERH(H531) - - - 7o - - 70
At30 June 2017 HoE-tEARZE 263871 95,192 3,52 - (395)  (148849) 213345
= ~
44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 44, EOHTEREHE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved EARBRRER_ZE—+ENLA-_+—_HE
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 EE ORI o
September 2017.
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Five Year Financial Summary
AFMBEFRE

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z—+F NA=THILFE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling inferests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out

TXRAEER I AN BFRE 2 REREE A
FOFERHERHE - RSB A EE 2B AhEEX
mApEmE  WEEEY BN -

below.
Year ended 30 June
HEAA=tHILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+F “TRF ~“Z-1F M —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL AT FET T
RESULTS E+
REVENUE A 323,154 399,736 749,660 1,166,050 1,241,329
Cost of sales EREERA (216,369)  (253031)  (435802)  (678,639) (725632
Gross profit =7 106,785 146,705 313,858 487,411 515,697
Other income and gains Hittg A Rl 4,448 4,508 4,023 707 519
Selling and distribution costs HERSHEKAR (80,135) (123,580) (239.937) (346,416) (341,792)
Administrative expenses THER (79.842) (135,248) (134,183) (178,660) (107,272)
Impairment of goodwill AERE - - - - (10,436)
Impairment of other infangible  Et &R EERE
assets (1.715) - - - (19,260)
Finance costs BEKK (349) (7.084) (1,528) a9 -
Share of loss of associate HMEBE AR Z BB = - - (12) (40)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI (B598), /&7 (50,808) (114,699) (57,767) (36,989) 37,416
Income tax expense FisHER (182) (222) (409) (6.799) (13,077)
(Loss)/profit for the year from  AEEREFHBLEER
continuing operations (B18)/BH (50,990) (114,921 (58,176) (43,788) 24,339
Profit/ (loss) for the year from AERRELILEEEY
discontinued operation R/ (B18) - 2,006 7,658 (8,583) 12,487
Impairment of assets of a BLEr SEFRSEGE
disposal group classified as MEERE
held for sale = - (36,394) (18,305) -
- 2,006 (28,736) (26,888) 12,487
(LOSS)/PROFITFORTHE YEAR /2 (f#8) /& (50,990)  (112915) (86912) (70,676) 36,826
Affributable to: A&l
Owners of the Company ADFHEEA (50,892)  (112,832) (87,003) (70.910) 37,105
Non-controlling interests RS (98) (83) 91 234 (279)
(50,990)  (112915) (86912) (70,676) 36,826
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-  4E - 8ERFERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BESE 326,244 234,817 350,599 347,003 339,297
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfERE (85137)  (102.798) (234,040)  (194,184) (119,103)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 312kt 20 (78) (1,039) ©947) (1,532)
241,127 131,941 115,520 151,872 218,662
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